
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
 

Committee - POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL 
 
Date & Time - Wednesday, 4 November 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - This will be a meeting held in line with The 
Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & 
Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2020 

 

The meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and 
streamed live, via the following link: 

www.facebook.com/SouthHollandDCofficial/ 

 

Membership of the Policy Development Panel: 
 
Councillors: J R Astill, J Avery, A C Beal, F Biggadike, M D Booth, R A Gibson, M Hasan, 
J L King, J D McLean, P A Redgate, J L Reynolds, G T D Rudkin, G P Scalese (Vice-
Chairman), S-A Slade, S C Walsh and A R Woolf (Chairman) 
 
Substitute members on the Policy Development Panel may be appointed only from 
members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual meetings. 
 
Quorum: 6 
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to silent 

mode 

 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   27 October 2020  



 

 

A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Policy 
Development Panel held on 15 September 2020 (copy enclosed): 
 

(Pages 
5 - 16) 

3.  Declaration of Interests. -  
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest and leave the meeting without participating in 
any discussion or making a statement on the item, except where a 
councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation. 
 

 

4.  Questions asked under Standing Order 6  
 

 

5.  Tracking of recommendations -  
To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel.   
 

 

6.  Items referred from the Performance Monitoring Panel  
 

 

7.  Key Decision Plan -  
To note the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).   
 

(Pages 
17 - 22) 

8.  Policy Register -  
To note the current Policy Register. 
 

(Pages 
23 - 30) 

9.  Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Development Policy -  
To consult with the Policy Development Panel regarding Ayscoughfee 
Hall Museum’s Collections Development Policy (report of the Executive 
Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
31 - 48) 

10.  Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Care & Conservation Policy -  
To consult with the Policy Development Panel regarding Ayscoughfee 
Hall Museum’s Collections, Care and Conservation Policy (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
49 - 60) 

11.  Corporate Health & Safety Policy 2020 -  
To propose a revised Health and Safety Policy and to recommend its 
formal adoption and implementation (report of the Portfolio Holder for 
Public Protection and the Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) 
enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
61 - 76) 

12.  Revised Statement of Licensing Policy -  
To consider the proposed draft statement of Licensing Policy (2021 to 
2026) (report of the Licensing and Business Support Manager 
enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
77 - 
116) 

13.  Policy Development Panel Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel 
(report of the Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring 
Officer) enclosed). 

(Pages 
117 - 
122) 



 

 

 
 
 

14.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. -  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.   

 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 8 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in line with The 
Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority 
& Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on Tuesday, 
15 September 2020 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
A R Woolf (Chairman) 

J D McLean (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

J R Astill 
R A Gibson 
M Hasan 
J L King 
 

P A Redgate 
J L Reynolds 
G T D Rudkin 
S-A Slade 
 

E J Sneath 
S C Walsh 
 

In Attendance:  The Executive Manager Delivery, the Place Manager, the Senior 
Policy Advisor, the Housing Landlord Manager, the Housing Services Manager, the 
Housing Options Manager, the Environmental Services Manager, the Democratic 
Services Manager and the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J Avery, 
F Biggadike and M D Booth  
 
 
 Action By 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.   

  

 The Panel was advised of the following substitution for this 
meeting only: 
 

 Councillor A M Newton was replacing Councillor M D Booth  

 

   

15. MINUTES   

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the Policy 
Development Panel meeting held on 23 June 2020. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the minutes be signed as a correct record as soon as 
practicable after the meeting.  

 

   

16. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were none.   

   

17. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   

  

 There were none.   

   

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



- 9 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

18. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS   

  

 There were none.   

   

19. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 PANEL  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

20. KEY DECISION PLAN   

  

 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan dated 2 
September 2020. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan be noted.  

 

   

21. POLICY REGISTER   

  

 The Panel gave consideration to the Policy Register dated August 
2020. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the Policy Register be noted.  

 

   

22. REVIEW OF LETTINGS POLICY FOR SHDC'S INDUSTRIAL 
 UNITS  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Property and Development, which set out the basis of the 
proposed replacement of the 2005 Lettings Policy for SHDC’s 
industrial units with a new Lettings Policy, also providing the 
Panel with an update on these industrial units and the preparation 
of a replacement for the Asset Management Strategy 2014-19 for 
the Council. 
 

The Council currently owned and managed five industrial estates 
at various locations across the District, totalling 50 units, 49 of 
which were currently let and producing income. 
 
Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Had there been any problems with regard to the sub-letting of 
industrial units? 

o Officers responded that sub-letting had in some cases 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



- 10 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

been a problem but that this issue was now being 
addressed as part of the proposed new Lettings Policy. 

 

 Some micro-businesses only required a small amount of 
space, could consideration be given to dividing up spaces 
within industrial units to accommodate this? 

o Officers responded that consideration was already 
being given to different ways in which existing and any 
new build industrial units owned and managed by the 
Council could provide for the needs of such businesses. 

 

 Members commented that it was satisfying to see that the vast 
majority of Industrial Units were let. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the following recommendations be noted: 
 
a) That the Council’s 2005 Lettings Policy for industrial units had 

been reviewed and that the Panel had considered the 
proposed replacement Lettings Policy, details of which were 
set out in the report, the new policy to be considered by the 
Cabinet at its meeting on 27 October 2020; 

 
b) That the recommendation to Cabinet that the current officer 

delegation ‘to grant industrial unit tenancies which meet the 
lettings criteria of general or light industrial use and make 
determinations, in accordance with the approved policy, in 
respect of: the level of rent deposit payable, any rent free 
period to be granted, and any discount to be granted for 
additional units’ be updated and simplified to read: ‘To grant 
industrial unit tenancies which meet the lettings criteria and 
make determinations, in accordance with the approved policy’ 
be noted and supported. 

 
c) That it be noted the proposed timetable for the drafting of a full 

Asset Management Strategy to replace the Council’s Asset 
Management Strategy 2014-2019 had been impacted by the 
Covid 19 pandemic, and until the position was clearer on the 
impact on assets use and utilisation, the drafting and 
subsequent presentation of the draft Strategy continued to be 
paused. 

 
d) That the steps taken to improve the tidiness of the commercial 

property estate and preparations made for the grant of new 
leases (on approval of the new Lettings Policy) be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RH  

   

23. EMPTY HOMES STRATEGY   

Page 7



- 11 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation which asked the Panel to consider the revised 
Empty Homes Strategy, provide feedback and approve the 
Strategy to go to Cabinet. 
 

The number of empty homes in South Holland was monitored 
closely to ensure reasonable steps were taken to bring properties 
back into use.  The Council’s current Empty Homes Strategy 
required updating to take account of changes in legislation 
including Council Tax reforms. An incremental empty homes 
premium had been approved which introduced higher charges for 
long term empty homes.  The Empty Homes Strategy would cover 
the Council’s overarching objectives with a clear link to the Private 
Sector Housing Enforcement Policy. 
 
The Empty Homes Strategy had been revised to deliver the 
following aims: 
 

 Reduce the number of long term empty homes (residential 
properties), and increase housing supply in South Holland by 
bringing them back into use. 

 Minimise the number of properties becoming long term empty 
(six months plus) by identifying them early and working with 
owners as soon as possible. 

 Provide a contact point and resource for owners of empty 
properties. 

 Work in partnership with other agencies to tackle the problem 
of empty properties. 

 
Members considered the report and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Members asked what happened with houses that were empty 
because they were not habitable, and could the Authority 
provide any assistance? 

o Officers responded that this issue was addressed as 
part of the Housing Assistance Policy (to be considered 
later in the meeting), and that there was a provision 
within that Policy to help in these circumstances. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PS  

   

24. TENANCY MANAGEMENT POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director  

Page 8



- 12 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

Commercialisation which sought approval of the Tenancy 
Management Policy. 
 

South Holland District Council’s Housing Services Team 
managed approximately 4000 properties.  The Tenancy 
Management Policy set out how the Team managed Introductory 
and Secure tenancies including: Succession, assignment and 
mutual exchange; Right to buy; Joint tenancies; Relationship 
breakdown; Running a business from home; Sub-letting and 
lodgers; Gardens; Infestations; Keeping animals and pets; Anti-
Social Behaviour; Access; Abandonment; Disabled aids and 
adaptations; Termination of tenancies; Rent and use and 
occupation accounts; Other breaches of tenancy; Decanting to 
alternative accommodation; Management of introductory 
tenancies; Monitoring tenancies and the condition of properties; 
Safeguarding; Personal property and insurance; and Tenancy 
fraud. 
 
The introduction of a Tenancy Management Policy and supporting 
procedures would ensure a consistent and transparent approach 
was delivered, and would be a point of reference for officers to 
base decisions on.  Many items in the policy related to items 
prescribed by housing legislation. 
 
Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Members commented that the succession of tenancies only 
seemed to allow one succession to a tenancy.  Was there any 
flexibility to extend beyond this? 

o Officers clarified that criteria for who could succeed a 
tenancy was dictated by Housing Law, and that the law 
stated that there could be only one automatic 
succession.  It was also clarified that succession was 
linked to the tenancy, and not the property.  It was 
important to consider how the Authority managed 
demand for housing. 

 Members noted the information provided by officers, but 
requested that consideration be given to making succession 
less constrained by allowing succession to carry on beyond 
one. 

 Members also stated that making tenancy succession more 
flexible could have an impact on housing stock and the ability 
to provide it to other people in need – any changes would 
need to balance these two issues. 

o Officers responded that a policy for discretionary 
successions could be developed, but that it would be 
discretionary, and the succession would succeed the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



- 13 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

tenancy and not a property.  It was difficult to adopt 
such a policy as they did not always operate as 
intended however, officers would consider the 
members’ request. 

 

 Members were concerned that, with regard to joint tenancies, 
a joint tenant could serve a notice to end a joint tenancy, even 
without the knowledge or consent of the other joint tenant.   

o Officers agreed that in some circumstances, this could 
be a cause for concern however, the ability to do this 
was detailed within the Housing Act, and the Authority 
could not override this legislation.  If there was a joint 
tenancy, the Authority would ensure that the other party 
was aware of the situation, but could not stop notice 
being served on the tenancy.    

 

 With regard to Joint to sole tenancy, members understood that 
a joint tenant could be removed from a joint tenancy – what 
would happen with the remaining tenant if they did not wish to 
end the tenancy? 

o Officers advised that, in practice, if one tenant wanted 
to be removed from the tenancy, the tenancy had to be 
ended – this was dictated by the Housing Act.  
However, the Authority would attempt to work with the 
remaining tenant. 

 

 How was an ‘acceptable condition’ for a garden to be kept in 
established, and how was this dealt with when it became a 
problem. 

o Officers commented that what constituted an 
‘acceptable condition’ could vary from person to person 
however, where disagreements arose, the Authority 
would attempt to use mediation to resolve any issues. 

 

 What was the situation regarding the keeping of pets? 
o Officers clarified that, permission had to be requested 

to keep any pets (other than 2 small caged birds, 1 
small fish tank or 1 small caged rodent) before the 
tenancy started.  If the new tenants already had pets, 
they would be advised that permission had to be 
sought, and the offer letter laid out how this could be 
done.  
 

 With regard to abandonment, what were the timescales before 
the Authority took repossession of the property, and who was 
responsible for the property while it was empty? 

o Officers advised that this would be 28 days from the 
date of abandonment (once this had been established).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



- 14 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

Officers would visit the property four times within this 
period to gather intelligence on whether the property 
was abandoned.  Responsibility for the property 
depended on the situation, but where possible, the 
Authority would work with the tenant and family. 

 

 With regard to Anti-Social Behaviour, badly maintained 
gardens etc, how could members find out who owned a 
property, and who to report to? 

o Officers stated that as information constantly changed, 
it would be preferable to liaise with the Housing 
Management Team.  Where a property was not 
Council-owned, any issues could be forwarded to the 
Community Safety Team. 

 

 Members questioned whether information on the discretionary 
home loss payment to tenants should be explained more fully, 
with accountability being clearer? 

o Officers advised that homeless payments were set out 
in Housing Act 1973.  The payments were discretionary 
and circumstances could differ – it would therefore be 
difficult to be more specific within the policy.  

 

 Members commented that the Housing Act dictated how 
certain situations should be dealt with – it was requested that 
this be stated within the policy, where this applied, so that it 
was clearer which actions were dictated by legislation and 
which were within the Authority’s gift to decide.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the draft Tenancy Management Policy be supported for 
consideration by the Cabinet, subject to the following: 
 

i. That consideration be given to a discretionary tenancy 
succession policy to provide more flexibility than the 
current policy (which only allowed succession to carry on 
beyond one), to be balanced against any impact on the 
Council’s housing stock; and 

 
ii. That the policy document made it clearer which areas were 

dictated by the Housing Act.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VC  
 
 
 
 
VC  
 
 
 
 
 
VC  

   

25. HOUSING ASSISTANCE POLICY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer) which included the Housing 
Assistance Policy for the Panel’s attention.  The aim was to 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



- 15 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

update policies, thus enabling South Holland District Council to 
assist a range of vulnerable and/or disadvantaged households. 
 

By adopting the policy, South Holland District Council would focus 
on preventing people having to give up their homes, thus 
promoting and enabling independent living by supporting those 
who may be at risk, to access housing (including their current 
home) which met their needs.   
 
The programme of assistance would include: 
 

 Providing adaptations to help disabled people to live 
independently and safely in their own homes through disabled 
facilities grants; 

 Providing a range of measures to create sustainable and 
appropriate housing for people who may be vulnerable and/or 
disadvantaged; 

 The provision of grants to help vulnerable homeowners to 
improve their homes and to facilitate property owners bringing 
housing stock back into use; 

 Assistance to those who were either threatened with 
homelessness or who were homeless persons, to either 
prevent their homelessness and/or allow access to suitable 
housing; 

 Assistance to SHDC tenants when emergencies occurred and 
intervention could maintain their tenancy and/or prevent their 
homelessness. 

 
Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Members stated that it was important that the various 
programmes of assistance were publicised to ensure that 
those who needed them were aware of the help available. 

 

 The various schemes within the policy were invaluable to the 
community. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Panel noted the report, prior to its consideration by the 
Cabinet.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PS  

   

26. MARKET TRADER FEES   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Environmental 
Services Manager, which laid out details of the proposed new 
market trader fees which were due to come into effect from 1 

 
 
 

Page 12



- 16 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

December 2020. 
 

A previous report, which had been considered by the Cabinet, 
Performance Monitoring Panel and Council, had outlined the re-
opening of markets with significant changes to arrangements 
following the Covid lockdown, in addition to a recommendation to 
review the fees traders paid in Spalding.  
 
Due to the change in arrangements, a review of the fees, which 
were higher in Spalding due to the previous stall provision, would 
be required.  Benchmarking work had been undertaken to 
understand charges in other local markets, and to establish 
whether the fees proposed should be reviewed further.   
 
Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 Members asked whether trader representation had been taken 
into account. 

o Officers responded that traders had been contacted 
via their representative and had expressed a desire 
to have fees in line with those charged at other 
markets.  These views had been considered and the 
fees proposed had been reduced further due to the 
contact with traders. 

 

 Why had Spalding market been compared to Kings Lynn 
market?  Comparisons should be made to other markets in the 
district instead, such as Holbeach and Long Sutton.  

o Comparisons had firstly been made with markets in 
Lincolnshire, and then markets outside of the 
County, in order to get a fuller picture. 

 

 It was suggested that Spalding market holders pay the same 
rate per stall as traders did in Holbeach and Long Sutton.  
Councillor Newton commented that the traders had 
recommended that they pay 51p per foot until the end of the 
financial year.  There were two options within the report and it 
was suggested that members consider a third point – that 
when charging was considered again in December, that all 
South Holland market traders paid the same. 

o Officers responded that parts 5.3.1 and 5.3.2 of the 
report made reference to responses from 
representatives. The amount of 51p had been 
added as an option as a point of comparison. 

 

 If charging for markets at Spalding was to be the same as 
Holbeach and Long Sutton, would subsidised parking also 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



- 17 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

apply? 
o Officers responded that this would be for the 

Cabinet to consider. 
 

 It was suggested that fees could be put on hold for the 
remainder of the financial year, and that a full review of market 
sustainability and pricing could be undertaken as part of the 
Town Centre Improvement Plans.  

 

 Members questioned what the timeframe was for the Town 
Centre Improvement Plans for Holbeach and Spalding? 

o Officers responded that both Plans had been ratified 
in October 2019, and work on the initiative had 
started with an event at the South Holland Centre in 
February 2020.  The Plan was not to initiate a 
regeneration project of the towns, rather it was 
considering improvements and the Pride initiative.  
Markets would be included as part of the work, but 
not a large scale regeneration.  There had been a 
pause in work during the Covid period however a 
steering group had now been set up, which would 
review the plan to ensure that it was still relevant 
and had the required impact.  A meeting was to be 
held at the end of September to go through the first 
part of the plan, and markets would be discussed.   

 
Councillor Newton proposed that the Panel vote on a third option 
(for submission to the Cabinet) – that Spalding market traders be 
charged the same amount per foot as stall holders at Holbeach 
and Long Sutton markets.  Councillor Walsh seconded the 
proposal.  The Panel voted on the proposal, and it was defeated. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That following consideration by the Policy Development Panel, 
market fees for Spalding, as detailed within the report, be 
reconsidered by the Cabinet, in line with the benchmarking 
exercise that had been undertaken.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CP  

   

27. POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME   

  

 The Panel considered a report by the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the work programme of the Panel.  
The work programme consisted of two sections, the first setting 
out the dates of future panel meetings along with proposed items 
for consideration, and the second setting out Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



- 18 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

Members considered the report, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

 In response to a question asking whether the Data Protection 
Task Group should remain on the Work Programme, the 
Chairman clarified that although it had finished its initial work, 
it had been decided to leave the Task Group as pending, in 
order to look at any issues that could arise in the future.  
Where Task Group members were no longer members or part 
of the Panel, replacements would be appointed where 
necessary. 

 

 The Chairman of the Planning Design Task Group provided an 
update on its progress, following information that he had 
received from the Planning and Building Control Manager.  
The Task Group had produced a report to the Policy 
Development Panel at its meeting on 23 June 2020, where it 
had been agreed that further work be carried out due to an 
extended timeline resulting from the cancellation of the South 
East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee because 
of the Coronavirus pandemic. It was important that the Task 
Group’s work continue and that work undertaken to date not 
be lost however, there could be implications as a result of the 
Government White Paper on Planning Reform.  The Principal 
Planning Officer would be the new Lead Officer to the Task 
Group.     

o The Chairman of the Panel commented that the White 
Paper may be published later in the year, with some 
direction possible after Christmas. He felt it would 
therefore be better to wait until the new year before 
continuing the work of the Planning Design Task Group 
and starting the work of the CIL Task Group.  
Membership of both Task Groups should remain the 
same. 

o It was requested that an update on Planning reform be 
provided to the Panel at its meeting on 19 January 
2021, to be removed if no information was available.   

 

 The Chairman stated that the Health and Safety Policy was to 
be considered at the next Panel meeting on 4 November 2020 
and was to be added to the Work Programme. 

 

 The Chairman introduced the Senior Policy Advisor to the 
Panel. He would be attending all future meetings to assist the 
Panel in looking forward at Government level policy items that 
could have an effect on the authority.    

 
AGREED: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



- 19 - 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 15 
September 2020 

 

 

 

 
a) That the Work Programme be noted; 
 
b) That an update on Planning reform be added to the Panel’s 

Work Programme on 19 January 2021; 
 
c) That work on the Planning Design Task Group recommence, 

and the CIL Task Group commence in the new year, once the 
implications of the Government White Paper on Planning 
Reform were known; and 

 
d) That the Health and Safety Policy be added to the Panel’s 

Work Programme on 4 November 2020;  

 
 
 
 
PN CM  
 
 
PH RB CM  
 
 
 
 
 
NK CM  

   

28. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 There were none. 
  

 

   

 
(The meeting ended at 8.50 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 27 October 2020 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7.

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
 
Fire door and 
Compliance 
contract 
 

Fire door replacement and associated 
fire compliance works to sheltered 
schemes 
 

 
 
 
 

 Housing Landlord 
Manager, or any other 
officer with delegation 
Not before 3rd Nov 2020 
 

MHCLG Next 
Steps 
Accommodation 
Programme 
 

To accept an offer made by MHCLG or 
Homes England as part of the Next 
Steps Accommodation Programme. 

 

 
 
 
 

 Leader 
Not before 24th Nov 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
 
Electrical 
Materials 
 

To award a contract for an electrical 
materials provider. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Housing Landlord 
Manager, or any other 
officer with delegation. 
Before 30 Nov 2020 
 

P
age 18



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
 
 
Plumbing and 
General 
Maintenance 
Contract 
 

The procurement of a contract to 
undertake works to the Councils 
assets is required. The contract will 
allow use by the HRA if required 
 

 
 
 
 

 Executive Director - 
Commercialisation (S151), 
or any other officer with 
delegation 
Before 30 Nov 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
 
Electrical Works 
Contract 
 

There is a requirement to procure a 
contract for works to commercial 
assets owned by the Council. The 
contract is intended to enable 
occasional use if required for the 
Councils properties 
 

 
 
 
 

 Executive Director - 
Commercialisation (S151), 
or any other officer with 
delegation. 
Before 30 Nov 2020 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for 
Environmental 
Services 
 
 
Daffodil Route 
Improvements 
 

To provide an update on potential 
improvements to the Daffodil Route 
between Pinchbeck Road and Johnson 
Hospital utilising section 106 funding to 
improve health and well being 
opportunities 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 15 Dec 2020, or 
Leader. 
 

P
age 19



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
 
 
Community 
Lottery 
 

To seek approval to set up South 
Holland Community Lottery 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 15 Dec 2020, or 
Leader 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
 
Property 
acquisitions (to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery) 
 

Acquisition of accommodation for the 
General Fund. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 15 Dec 2020, or 
Leader. 
 P

age 20



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
5 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
 
Acquisition 
project to 
purchase S106 
units 
 

To consider the business case relating 
to a potential acquisition project to 
purchase 7 s106 units within the 
district. 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 15 Dec 2020, or 
Leader 
 
South Holland District 
Council 20 Jan 2021 
 

 

*Cabinet Membership 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader) 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor H Drury (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor E J Sneath (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 
 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

P
age 21

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

SHDC Policy Register 
 

Generated on: 26 October 2020 

 

 
 

Rows are sorted by End Date 
 
Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 

influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

Asset Management 
Strategy 

Constitutional Yes 18-Jun-2014 5 years 18-Jun-2019 Pending 
Approval 

A full asset 
management plan 
will not be 
updated until Q1 
2021 on the basis 
that COVID has 
impacted many of 
our assets. 
 
  
 
A short COVID 
asset 
management 
statement will be 
drafted and ready 
during November 
and data 
collection has 
started for full 
strategy with 
condition being 
the current focus. 

Richard Hodgson 

Constitution Statutory No 18-Jan-2018    Approved Changes continue 
to be made when 

Rhonda Booth 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8.



2 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

and where 
necessary and 
agreed at Council 
on a regular 
basis. 

HR Policy Handbook Non Statutory Yes 18-Jan-2017 3 years 18-Jan-2020 Approved The policy 
handbook is 
currently under 
review, a clause 
states in this 
handbook that 
unless significant 
changes are 
made then this 
policy handbook 
does not need to 
be reviewed by 
Committee, as 
there will be no 
significant 
changes the HR 
manager does not 
feel a review will 
be required. 
However the 
panel will be 
notified when the 
review is 
complete. 

Claire Burton 

AHM Collections 
Development Policy 

Non Statutory No 01-Feb-2018 3 years 01-Feb-2020 Approved Policy review 
cycle has been 
extended by a 
year to bring it in 
line with 

Julia Knight 

P
age 24



3 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

accreditation 
reviews and 
returns  

AHM Collections 
Care and 
Conservation Policy 

Non Statutory No 01-Feb-2018 3 years 01-Feb-2020 Approved Policy review 
cycle has been 
extended by a 
year to bring it in 
line with 
accreditation 
reviews and 
returns 

Julia Knight 

Corporate Plan Constitutional Yes 08-Mar-2018 1 year 01-Mar-2020 Approved Plan is reviewed 
annually   

Greg Pearson 

Capital Strategy Constitutional Yes 27-Feb-2019 1 year 31-Mar-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

Corporate Charging 
Policy - Accounting 
Services 

Constitutional Yes 08-Mar-2018 1 year 31-Mar-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Constitutional No 08-Mar-2018 1 year 31-Mar-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy Statement 

Constitutional No 08-Mar-2018 1 year 31-Mar-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

Treasury Policy 
Statement & Clauses 
to be Adopted 

Constitutional No 08-Mar-2018 1 year 31-Mar-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 

Constitutional No 08-Mar-2018 1 year 31-Mar-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

P
age 25



4 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

Health & Safety 
Policy 

Statutory No 22-Nov-2017 3 years 01-Jun-2020 Approved This has been 
agreed by PSPS 
to be a 3 yearly 
policy review 
cycle in line with 
other 
organisations, 
when this policy is 
reviewed in June 
it will go via the 
panel and the 
relevant 
committees.  

Emily Ferrier; Nick 
Kendrick 

Corporate Debt 
Policy - Accounting 
Services 

Non Statutory Yes 25-Jul-2017 3 years 25-Jul-2020 Approved Policy is covered 
by Governance 
and Audit 

Samantha Knowles 

Unreasonable 
Behaviour and 
vexatious requests 

Non Statutory Yes 21-Nov-2017 3 years 21-Nov-2020 Approved  Sarah 
Wolstenholme-Smy 

Counter Fraud and 
Corruption Policy 

Non Statutory Yes 14-Dec-2017 3 years 14-Dec-2020 Approved  Faye Haywood 

Whistleblowing 
Policy - Confidential 
Reporting Code 

Statutory Yes 14-Dec-2017 3 years 14-Dec-2020 Approved  Faye Haywood 

Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

Constitutional Yes 07-Jan-2016 5 years 07-Jan-2021 Approved Statutory 
requirement to 
review every 5 
years   

Donna Hall 

Data Protection 
Policy 

Statutory No 29-May-2018 3 years 29-May-2021 Approved Agreed at 29th 
May Cabinet 

Kirsty Mallett 

Corporate 
Enforcement Policy 

Non Statutory Yes 29-May-2018 3 years 29-May-2021 Approved  Sarah Shipley 

P
age 26



5 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

Equalities Policy Non Statutory Yes 26-Jun-2018 3 years 26-Jun-2021 Approved Was due to be 
presented in 
June, however 
due to focus being 
on COVID 
response these 
will be presented 
at a later date for 
review 

Ross Bangs 

Freedom of 
Information (FoI) 
Policy 

Statutory No 26-Jun-2018 3 years 26-Jun-2021 Approved Was due to be 
presented in 
June, however 
due to focus being 
on COVID 
response these 
will be presented 
at a later date for 
review 

Ross Bangs 

Sexual 
Establishments 
Policy Statement 

Non Statutory Yes 06-Sep-2017 3 years 06-Sep-2021 Approved Agreed with chair 
of PDP that as the 
policy needs no 
changes/revisions
, that it can be 
extended for a 
further 12 months 
and then be 
reviewed  

Donna Hall 

Street Naming and 
Numbering Policy 

Statutory Yes 01-Nov-2018 3 years 01-Nov-2021 Approved Draft received and 
approved for sign 
off at PDP in 
September 2018 

Clinton Bell 

Hate Crime Policy Non Statutory No 01-Nov-2018 3 years 01-Nov-2021 Approved superceded by 
county policy - 

Dee Bedford 

P
age 27



6 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

internal 
procedures will be 
updated as per 
agreement wth 
policy panel 

Safeguarding Policy Statutory No 20-Nov-2018 3 years 01-Nov-2021 Approved Policy approved 
at SHDC cabinet 
20/11/18 

Donna Hall 

Gambling Policy - 
Statement of 
Principles 

Constitutional Yes 28-Nov-2018 3 years 28-Nov-2021 Approved Approved at 
SHDC full council 
28/11/18 

Donna Hall 

Records 
Management Policy 

  Yes   3 years 01-Jan-2022 Pending 
Approval 

 Kirsty Mallett 

Strategic Tenancy 
Policy 

Statutory No 01-Feb-2019 3 years 01-Feb-2022 Approved Caroline Hannon 
Attended PD  in 
Feb where it was 
agreed to go to 
Senior Officers to 
determine the 
appetite for 
reviewing, the 
Panel were 
satisfied that 
officers would 
determine if there 
was an appetite 
for this. 
 
All councils are 
told to have a 
strategic tenancy 
policy, but this inst 
one that needs a 

Matthew Hogan 

P
age 28



7 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

formal review at 
this stage 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
Policy 

Statutory Yes 01-May-2019 3 years 01-Mar-2022 Approved The ASB Policy 
has been 
approved as it is 
currently that of 
the Lincolnshire 
County Council 
one. The County 
one is currently 
out for 
consultation as it 
has been updated 
in line with new 
recommendations 
from the victims 
commissioner, 
any updated on 
this will be fed 
through to PDP 

Dee Bedford 

South Holland 
Common Housing 
Allocations Policy 

Statutory No 01-Jun-2013 3 years 01-Mar-2022 Approved  Phil Stacey 

Affordable Housing 
Policy 

Non Statutory Yes 01-Jan-2009 3 years 01-Apr-2022 Approved This Policy has 
approved within 
the Local Plan, It 
has been agreed 
there doesn't 
need to be a 
separate housing 
strategy, this has 
now been formally 
adopted in line 

Matthew Hogan 

P
age 29



8 

Policy Title Policy Type Can Policy be 
influenced 
(flexible scope) 

Approved Date Policy Review 
Cycle  

End Date Policy Status  Latest Note Assigned To 

with the Local 
Plan 

Taxi Licensing Policy Non Statutory Yes 01-Jun-2019 3 years 01-Jun-2022 Approved  Donna Hall 

 
  

P
age 30



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Executive Director - Commercialisation (S151) 

  

To: Policy Development Panel Wednesday, 4 November 2020  

 

(Author: Julia Knight Manager - Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and Gardens) 

 

Subject Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Development Policy 

 

Purpose: To consult with Policy Development Panel regarding Ayscoughfee Hall 

Museum’s Collections Development Policy. 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the Panel considers the Policy, provides feedback and comments that it may wish to 

make in readiness for submission to the Portfolio Holder. 
 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum is Accredited by Arts Council England. The Accreditation 

scheme is a national framework for museums that lays out best practice guidelines and 

standards to follow, to ensure professionalism and consistency. 

 

1.2 Accredited status allows Ayscoughfee Hall Museum access to professional networks, 

training, support and funding. 

 

1.3 A key requirement for Accreditation is the need for two policies: Collections Development 

and Care & Conservation. 

 

1.4 The Collections Development Policy describes the existing collections held by the Museum, 

the priorities for future collecting, and the priorities for any disposal that may occur. 

 

1.5 Arts Council England review each museum’s Accreditation on a regular basis, reviewing 

policies and ensuring that they have been discussed and approved by the relevant 

governing body. 

 

1.6 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s policies were last formally approved in 2012, but have been 

updated with minor revisions as best practice and industry guidance is received. 

 

1.7 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s Accreditation Review is due to take place in February 2021, 

having been paused during the Covid 19 pandemic. 

 

2.0 OPTIONS 

 

2.1 To support the policy for submission to the Portfolio Holder; or 

 

2.2 To support subject to comments for consideration by the Portfolio Holder; or 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9.



 

2.3 Do nothing and continue to operate with existing policy.  

 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 In order to retain Accredited Status, Ayscoughfee Hall Museum is required to have a 

formally approved Collections Development Policy, in line with Arts Council England 

requirements. Arts Council England requires certain wording to be used in certain 

paragraphs, particularly relating to human remains, trade in endangered species, and the 

spoliation of works of art during the Nazi, Holocaust and World War II period. 

 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum will retain Accredited status, meaning that funding can be 

applied for, and the Museum is recognised as a well-managed, professional museum. 

 

4.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s collection of historic objects and artefacts will continue to be 

managed in the correct way, to ensure their survival for the future. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

 

 

5.1 Constitutional & Legal 

5.1.1 The ownership of collections objects and artefacts may be queried, if disposal is publicised. 

Due diligence will be carried out by Ayscoughfee Hall Museum staff to ensure confidence in 

process. 

 

5.1.2 In accordance with the provisions of the UNESCO 1970 Convention on the Means of 

Prohibiting and Preventing the Illicit Import, Export and Transfer of Ownership of Cultural 

Property, which the UK ratified with effect from November 1 2002, and the Dealing in 

Cultural Objects (Offences) Act 2003, the Museum will reject any items that have been 

illicitly traded. The governing body will be guided by the national guidance on the 

responsible acquisition of cultural property issued by the Department for Culture, Media 

and Sport in 2005. 

 

 

 

5.2 Corporate Priorities 

 

Page 32



This policy supports the following Corporate Priority: 

Your Place: Lead, enable and embed the provision of a range of improved local community, 

cultural and art facilities that support the enhanced wellbeing of South Holland’s 

communities 

 

 

5.3 Financial 

5.3.1 The acceptance of this policy will enable Ayscoughfee Hall Museum to continue to be 

eligible for external funding that can only be awarded to Accredited organisations. 

 

 

5.4 Reputation 

5.4.1 If a suitable policy is not in place, and Accreditation is withdrawn, the reputation of 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and South Holland District Council, may be affected due to a 

perceived loss of professionalism in the management of the Museum and its collection. 

 

5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 If a suitable policy is not in place, Ayscoughfee Hall Museum will lose its Accredited status, 

meaning that funding cannot be applied for, and the Museum is not recognised as a well-

managed, professional museum. 

 

5.5.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s collection of historic objects and artefacts will continue to be 

managed in the correct way, to ensure their survival for the future. 

 

5.6 Staffing 

5.6.1 Should the policy be agreed, all staff will be briefed and trained in any new operational 

details. 

 

5.7 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales 

5.7.1 Arts Council England Accreditation is reviewed every three years, with an expectation that 

policies will be updated, agreed and formally approved in line with the governing body’s 

usual timescales. 

 

5.7.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s Accreditation will next be reviewed in February 2021. 

 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 All 

 

 

Background papers:- none 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Julia Knight Manager - Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and Gardens 

Telephone Number  

Email: jknight@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N 

 

Exempt Decision: N  

 

Page 33



This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Development Policy 

 

Page 34



    
 

South Holland District Council 
 
 
 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum  
Collections Development Policy 

 
 

September 2020 
 
 

Community Development 
 

Page 35



Page 2 of 14 

Document Control and History 
 

Version Control 

Issue No. Author Issue Date Reasons for Issue 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 

Approval of draft and final approval process 

Issue No. Approval 
Process 

Name Signature and Date 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 

Revision Schedule 

Issue No. Approval 
Process 

Name Signature and Date 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 

Added to Policy Register 

Yes/No Policy Officer Signature 
and Date 

Signature and Date 

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 36



Page 3 of 14 

CONTENTS 

 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. 4 
Scope – Policy Aim .................................................................................................. 4 
Legislation or Executive Summary ......................................................................... 4 
Policy Consultation and Consideration ................................................................. 4 
Policy Statement ...................................................................................................... 5 
Implementation ....................................................................................................... 14 

 

Page 37



Page 4 of 14 

Introduction 

 
Ayscoughfee Hall Museum was set up by South Holland District Council in 1983 to 
provide a Museum which would collect and display material from within the 
boundaries of the South Holland district of Lincolnshire. This fenland area has a 
distinctive character and particular emphasis was laid on collecting material relating 
to land drainage, agriculture and horticulture. The Museum first opened to the public 
in 1987 with one gallery displaying objects relating to drainage and agriculture in the 
district. It closed for refurbishment in October 2003. 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum reopened to the public in June 2006 following a project 
that saw the building refurbished and the Museum reinterpreted. This scheme was 
financed largely by the Heritage Lottery Fund, and they requested that the building, 
along with its history and development, be the main exhibit of the new Museum. 

All new objects in the Museum’s collections will be documented to SPECTRUM 
standards, as detailed in the Documentation Procedural Manual. 

 

Statement of Purpose 

 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum exists to preserve the heritage of South Holland for the 
benefit of residents, visitors and other members of the community. Ayscoughfee Hall 
Museum will enable people to explore collections relating to the history of South 
Holland for inspiration, learning and enjoyment. We will collect, safeguard and make 
accessible the artefacts, records and specimens that we hold in trust for society. 
 

 

Scope – Policy Aim 

The aim of this policy is to set out the methods by which Ayscoughfee Hall Museum 
collects objects for the permanent collection, the types of objects to be collected or 
not, and the ways in which the whole collection is managed and developed. 
 

Legislation or Executive Summary 

This policy is required for Ayscoughfee Hall Museum to retain its Accredited status, 
awarded by Arts Council England. 
 
 

Policy Consultation and Consideration 

This policy has been written with proper regard to Arts Council England’s guidelines 
on Museum collections development, taking into account all legal, moral and ethical 
guidelines. This policy follows the earlier Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections 
Development Policy, approved by Cllr Howard Johnson, Portfolio Holder in August 
2012. 
 
 
 

Page 38



Page 5 of 14 

Policy Statement 

 
1. Relationship to other relevant policies/plans of the organisation: 
 

1.1. Ayscoughfee Hall Museum's statement of purpose is: 
 
Ayscoughfee Hall Museum exists to preserve the heritage of South Holland 
for the benefit of residents, visitors and other members of the community. 
Ayscoughfee Hall Museum will enable people to explore collections relating 
to the history of South Holland for inspiration, learning and enjoyment. We 
will collect, safeguard and make accessible the artefacts, records and 
specimens that we hold in trust for society. 
 

1.2. The governing body will ensure that both acquisition and disposal are carried 
out openly and with transparency. 
 

1.3. By definition, the Museum has a long-term purpose and holds collections in 
trust for the benefit of the public in relation to its stated objectives. The 
governing body therefore accepts the principle that sound curatorial reasons 
must be established before consideration is given to any acquisition to the 
collection, or the disposal of any items in the Museum's' collection. 
 

1.4. Acquisitions outside the current stated policy will only be made in exceptional 
circumstances. 
 

1.5. The Museum recognises its responsibility, when acquiring additions to its 
collections, to ensure that care of collections, documentation arrangements 
and use of collections will meet the requirements of the Arts Council England 
Museum Accreditation Standard. This includes SPECTRUM primary 
procedures for collections management. It will take into account limitations on 
collecting imposed by such factors as staffing, storage and care of collection 
arrangements. 
 

1.6. The Museum will undertake due diligence and make every effort not to 
acquire, whether by purchase, gift, bequest or exchange, any object or 
specimen unless the governing body or responsible officer is satisfied that 
the Museum can acquire a valid title to the item in question. 
 

1.7. In exceptional cases, disposal may be motivated principally by financial 
reasons. The method of disposal will therefore be by sale and the procedures 
outlines below will be followed. In cases where disposal is motivated by 
financial reasons, the governing body will not undertake disposal unless it 
can be demonstrated that all of the following exceptional circumstances are 
met in full: 
- the disposal will significantly improve the long-term public benefit derived 
from the remaining collection. 
- the disposal will not be undertaken to generate short-term revenue (for 
example to meet a budget deficit). 
- the disposal will be undertaken as a last resort after other sources of 
funding have been thoroughly explored. 

Page 39



Page 6 of 14 

- extensive prior consultation with sector bodies has been undertaken 
- the item under consideration lies outside the Museum's established core 
collection. 

 
 
2. History of the collections 

 
2.1 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum was set up by South Holland District Council in 
1983 to provide a Museum which would collect and display material from within 
the boundaries of the South Holland district of Lincolnshire. This fenland area has 
a distinctive character and particular emphasis was laid on collecting material 
relating to land drainage, agriculture and horticulture. The Museum first opened 
to the public in 1987 with one gallery displaying objects relating to drainage and 
agriculture in the district. It closed for refurbishment in October 2003. 

2.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum reopened to the public in June 2006 following a 
project that saw the building refurbished and the Museum reinterpreted. This 
scheme was financed largely by the Heritage Lottery Fund, and they requested 
that the building, along with its history and development, be the main exhibit of 
the new Museum. 

2.3 The majority of items in the collection have been donated by local people, 
from the Museum's inception in 1987.  

 
 
3. An overview of current collections 
 

3.1 The Museum’s collection has strengths in a number of areas, notably 
agriculture, horticulture, Fen drainage and social history (particularly costume 
and photographs). 

3.2 A number of other collections maintained by the Museum are worthy of 
specific mention. 

3.2.1 Archaeology 
 The majority of the archaeological objects (Prehistoric, Roman, Saxon 

and Medieval), on display in Ayscoughfee are on loan from the 
archaeology department of Lincolnshire County Council’s Heritage 
Services section. 

 
3.2.2 Archives 

 The Museum has a large archival collection relating to the South Holland 
district.  

 
3.2.3 Art 

 In 2019 a significant group of 10 portraits was acquired from a 
descendant of the Johnson family. The portraits, of various members of 
the Johnson family, were acquired by private treaty sale with support 
from Art Fund, The Victoria & Albert/ Arts Council England Purchase 
Grant Fund and Museums Association Beecroft Bequest, as well as 
South Holland District Council. The Museum has a small collection of art 
including works on paper and easel paintings. Most of these relate in 

Page 40



Page 7 of 14 

some way to the building or to the families who owned or lived in 
Ayscoughfee.  

 
3.2.4 Books for display purposes 

 The large number of books currently on display in the Museum’s 
Victorian Library comes mainly from the collection of Dr. William Strong, 
chaplain to King William IV. They have been on loan to Ayscoughfee 
from Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery since 1987 and neither party 
has any plans to change this arrangement.  

 
3.2.5 Schools loan collection 

The Museum maintains a small collection of stuffed, cased British birds 
and small mammals. This collection is seen as being outside the scope of 
the permanent Museum collection, and as such is treated as a separate 
entity. It will continue to be offered to schools on a loan basis.  

 

4. Themes and priorities for future collecting 

 
4.1 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum has strengths in agriculture, horticulture, Fen 
drainage and social history (particularly costume and photographs), and it is 
intended that limited collecting will be undertaken in these areas, due to the 
representative nature of the existing collections. However, objects particularly 
relevant to the history of the Hall, Gardens, and the people who lived here will 
continue to be acquired as practical. 
 
4.2 Although the Hall is now the centrepiece of the Museum, Ayscoughfee’s 
mission statement makes it clear that there is a continuing duty to acquire 
material that is representative of the district. Some of the Museum’s display 
areas are dedicated to exhibiting this material. 

 
4.3 There are no plans to add archaeological material to the existing collection 
unless it is material specifically related to Ayscoughfee Hall or Ayscoughfee 
Gardens. Members of the public offering archival material not required by the 
Museum will be given the contact details of Lincolnshire County Council. 
 
4.4 The view has been taken that the archival collection will not be added to 
unless the material offered is of especial interest to the district, or relates in 
some way to the history of the Hall or Gardens. Members of the public offering 
archival material not required by the Museum will be given the contact details 
of Lincolnshire Archives. 
 
4.5 Careful consideration will be given to any potential acquisitions of works of 
art, due to the storage requirements of different media and associated 
conservation costs. 
 
4.6 There are no plans to add to Ayscoughfee’s display collection of books. 
 
4.7 There are no plans to add to the schools loan collection, nor to begin a 
collection based on any aspect of the natural sciences. 

Page 41



Page 8 of 14 

 
 
5. Themes and priorities for rationalisation and disposal 

 
5.1 The Museum recognises that the principles on which priorities for 
rationalisation and disposal are determined will be through a formal review 
process that identifies which collections are included and excluded from the 
review. The outcome of review and any subsequent rationalisation will not reduce 
the quality or significance of the collection and will result in a more useable, well 
managed collection.  

 
5.2 The procedures used will meet professional standards. The process will be 
documented, open and transparent. There will be clear communication with key 
stakeholders about the outcomes and the process. 
 
5.3 Any disposal will be carried out with reference to the Museums Association 
‘Disposals Toolkit’, after a review of the objects to be disposed of is undertaken 
by the Museum Manager, or other professional curator. 
 
5.4 Priority for retention will be given to objects particularly relevant to the history 
of the Hall, Gardens and its inhabitants.  
 
5.5 Disposal is not a priority for this current period, but will be reviewed on an 
ongoing basis as resources allow. 
 

 
6 Legal and ethical framework for acquisition and disposal of items  

 
6.1 The Museum recognises its responsibility to work within the parameters of 

the Museum Association Code of Ethics when considering acquisition and 
disposal. 

 
7 Collecting policies of other Museums  

 
7.1 The Museum will take account of the collecting policies of other Museums 

and other organisations collecting in the same or related areas or subject 
fields. It will consult with these organisations where conflicts of interest may 
arise or to define areas of specialism, in order to avoid unnecessary 
duplication and waste of resources. 

 
7.2 Specific reference is made to the following Museum(s)/organisation(s): 

 

  

 The Museum of the Spalding Gentlemen’s Society  } Accredited 

 Chain Bridge Forge, Spalding    } Museums within  

 The Museum of Technology, Gadgets & Gizmos } South Holland 

 The Pinchbeck Engine Museum 

 Lincolnshire County Council Heritage Services (particularly The Collection, 
The Museum of Lincolnshire Life and The Usher Art Gallery). 

 

Page 42



Page 9 of 14 

 
 
 
 
8 Archival holdings  
 

8.1 Ayscoughfee Hall currently holds a range of archival material, including works 
on paper, documents and photographs. 
 

8.2 While Ayscoughfee Hall Museum may continue to collect photographs and 
documents, careful consideration will be given to space and curatorial 
requirements prior to acquisition. 
 

 
9 Acquisition 

 
9.1 The policy for agreeing acquisitions is: 

 
9.1.1 Decision making for objects acquired is taken by the Museum 

Manager, as the curatorial member of staff employed by South 
Holland District Council. Due care will be given to space and 
resource constraints, and all correspondence will be carried out 
in a timely manner. 

9.1.2 As described above, priority for acquisition will be given to 
objects directly related to the Hall, its inhabitants, and Spalding 
and South Holland. 

9.1.3 Acquisition by purchase is presumed against, unless agreement 
by Museum senior management is relayed in advance. 
 

 
9.2 The Museum will not acquire any object or specimen unless it is satisfied 

that the object or specimen has not been acquired in, or exported from, its 
country of origin (or any intermediate country in which it may have been 
legally owned) in violation of that country’s laws. (For the purposes of this 
paragraph ‘country of origin’ includes the United Kingdom). 

 
9.3 In accordance with the provisions of the UNESCO 1970 Convention on the 

Means of Prohibiting and Preventing the Illicit Import, Export and Transfer 
of Ownership of Cultural Property, which the UK ratified with effect from 
November 1 2002, and the Dealing in Cultural Objects (Offences) Act 2003, 
the Museum will reject any items that have been illicitly traded. The 
governing body will be guided by the national guidance on the responsible 
acquisition of cultural property issued by the Department for Culture, Media 
and Sport in 2005. 

 
 
10 Human remains 

 
 

10.1 The Museum does not hold or intend to acquire any human remains. 

Page 43



Page 10 of 14 

 
 

11 Biological and geological material 
 

 
11.1 So far as biological and geological material is concerned, the Museum will 

not acquire by any direct or indirect means any specimen that has been 
collected, sold or otherwise transferred in contravention of any national or 
international wildlife protection or natural history conservation law or treaty 
of the United Kingdom or any other country, except with the express 
consent of an appropriate outside authority. 

 
 
 
 

12 Archaeological material 
 
12.1 The Museum will not acquire archaeological material (including excavated 

ceramics) in any case where the governing body or responsible officer has 
any suspicion that the circumstances of their recovery involved a failure to 
follow the appropriate legal procedures. 

 
12.2  In England, Wales and Northern Ireland the procedures include reporting 

finds to the landowner or occupier of the land and to the proper authorities 
in the case of possible treasure (i.e. the Coroner for Treasure) as set out in 
the Treasure Act 1996 (as amended by the Coroners & Justice Act 2009). 

 
 

13 Exceptions 
 
13.1 Any exceptions to the above clauses will only be because the Museum 

is:  
 
o acting as an externally approved repository of last resort for 

material of local (UK) origin 
 

o acting with the permission of authorities with the requisite 
jurisdiction in the country of origin 

 
In these cases the Museum will be open and transparent in the way it 
makes decisions and will act only with the express consent of an 
appropriate outside authority. The Museum will document when these 
exceptions occur. 

 
 

14 Spoliation  
 
14.1 The Museum will use the statement of principles ‘Spoliation of Works of 

Art during the Nazi, Holocaust and World War II period’, issued for non-
national Museums in 1999 by the Museums and Galleries Commission. 

Page 44



Page 11 of 14 

 
 

15 The Repatriation and Restitution of objects and human remains 
 

15.1 The Museum’s governing body, acting on the advice of the Museum’s 
professional staff, if any, may take a decision to return human remains 
(unless covered by the ‘Guidance for the care of human remains in 
Museums’ issued by DCMS in 2005) , objects or specimens to a 
country or people of origin. The Museum will take such decisions on a 
case by case basis; within its legal position and taking into account all 
ethical implications and available guidance. This will mean that the 
procedures described in 16.1-5 will be followed but the remaining 
procedures are not appropriate. 
 

16 Disposal procedures 
 

16.1 All disposals will be undertaken with reference to the SPECTRUM 
Primary Procedures on disposal. 
 

16.2 The governing body will confirm that it is legally free to dispose of an 
item. Agreements on disposal made with donors will also be taken into 
account.  

 
16.3 When disposal of a museum object is being considered, the Museum 

will establish if it was acquired with the aid of an external funding 
organisation. In such cases, any conditions attached to the original 
grant will be followed. This may include repayment of the original grant 
and a proportion of the proceeds if the item is disposed of by sale. 

 
16.4 When disposal is motivated by curatorial reasons the procedures 

outlined below will be followed and the method of disposal may be by 
gift, sale, exchange or as a last resort - destruction.  

 
16.5 The decision to dispose of material from the collections will be taken by 

the governing body only after full consideration of the reasons for 
disposal. Other factors including public benefit, the implications for the 
Museum’s collections and collections held by museums and other 
organisations collecting the same material or in related fields will be 
considered. Expert advice will be obtained and the views of 
stakeholders such as donors, researchers, local and source 
communities and others served by the Museum will also be sought. 

 
16.6 A decision to dispose of a specimen or object, whether by gift, 

exchange, sale or destruction (in the case of an item too badly 
damaged or deteriorated to be of any use for the purposes of the 
collections or for reasons of health and safety), will be the responsibility 
of the governing body of the Museum acting on the advice of 
professional curatorial staff, and not of the curator or manager of the 
collection acting alone. 

 

Page 45



Page 12 of 14 

16.7 Once a decision to dispose of material in the collection has been taken, 
priority will be given to retaining it within the public domain. It will 
therefore be offered in the first instance, by gift or sale, directly to other 
Accredited Museums likely to be interested in its acquisition. 

 
16.8 If the material is not acquired by any Accredited Museum to which it 

was offered as a gift or for sale, then the Museum community at large 
will be advised of the intention to dispose of the material normally 
through a notice on the MA’s Find an Object web listing service, an 
announcement in the Museums Association’s Museums Journal or in 
other specialist publications and websites (if appropriate).  

 
16.9 The announcement relating to gift or sale will indicate the number and 

nature of specimens or objects involved, and the basis on which the 
material will be transferred to another institution. Preference will be 
given to expressions of interest from other Accredited Museums. A 
period of at least two months will be allowed for an interest in acquiring 
the material to be expressed. At the end of this period, if no 
expressions of interest have been received, the Museum may consider 
disposing of the material to other interested individuals and 
organisations giving priority to organisations in the public domain. 

 
16.10 Any monies received by the Museum governing body from the disposal 

of items will be applied solely and directly for the benefit of the 
collections. This normally means the purchase of further acquisitions. In 
exceptional cases, improvements relating to the care of collections in 
order to meet or exceed Accreditation requirements relating to the risk 
of damage to and deterioration of the collections may be justifiable. Any 
monies received in compensation for the damage, loss or destruction of 
items will be applied in the same way. Advice on those cases where the 
monies are intended to be used for the care of collections will be 
sought from the Arts Council England. 

 
16.11 The proceeds of a sale will be allocated so it can be demonstrated that 

they are spent in a manner compatible with the requirements of the 
Accreditation standard. Money must be restricted to the long-term 
sustainability, use and development of the collection. 

 
16.12 Full records will be kept of all decisions on disposals and the items 

involved and proper arrangements made for the preservation and/or 
transfer, as appropriate, of the documentation relating to the items 
concerned, including photographic records where practicable in 
accordance with SPECTRUM Procedure on deaccession and disposal. 

 
16.13 The nature of disposal by exchange means that the Museum will not 

necessarily be in a position to exchange the material with another 
Accredited Museum. The governing body will therefore ensure that 
issues relating to accountability and impartiality are carefully 
considered to avoid undue influence on its decision-making process. 
 

Page 46



Page 13 of 14 

16.13.1 In cases where the governing body wishes for sound 
curatorial reasons to exchange material directly with 
Accredited or non-Accredited Museums, with other 
organisations or with individuals, the procedures in 
paragraphs 16.1-5 will apply. 
 

16.13.2 If the exchange is proposed to be made with a specific 
Accredited Museum, other Accredited Museums which 
collect in the same or related areas will be directly notified 
of the proposal and their comments will be requested.  

 
16.13.3 If the exchange is proposed with a non-Accredited 

Museum, with another type of organisation or with an 
individual, the Museum will place a notice on the MA’s 
Find an Object web listing service, or make an 
announcement in the Museums Association’s Museums 
Journal or in other specialist publications and websites (if 
appropriate).  

 
16.13.4 Both the notification and announcement must provide 

information on the number and nature of the specimens or 
objects involved both in the Museum’s collection and 
those intended to be acquired in exchange. A period of at 
least two months must be allowed for comments to be 
received. At the end of this period, the governing body 
must consider the comments before a final decision on 
the exchange is made. 

 
 
16.14 If it is not possible to dispose of an object through transfer or sale, the 

governing body may decide to destroy it. 
 

16.15 It is acceptable to destroy material of low intrinsic significance 
(duplicate mass-produced articles or common specimens which lack 
significant provenance) where no alternative method of disposal can be 
found. 

 
16.16 Destruction is also an acceptable method of disposal in cases where an 

object is in extremely poor condition, has high associated health and 
safety risks or is part of an approved destructive testing request 
identified in an organisation’s research policy. 

 
16.17 Where necessary, specialist advice will be sought to establish the 

appropriate method of destruction. Health and safety risk assessments 
will be carried out by trained staff where required. 

 
16.18 The destruction of objects should be witnessed by an appropriate 

member of the Museum workforce. In circumstances where this is not 
possible, e.g. the destruction of controlled substances, a police 
certificate should be obtained and kept in the relevant object history file.  

Page 47



Page 14 of 14 

 
 

 

Implementation 

Implementation of this policy is the responsibility of the Museum Manager, as part of 
the curatorial roles of this post. In conjunction with other museum professionals, this 
policy will be implemented and regularly referred to, to inform acquisition and 
disposal practice. 
 
This policy will be published on Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s website to allow full 
transparency into the acquisition and disposal process. 
 
 

Date of policy 

 
September 2020 
 

Date of review 

 
September 2023 

Page 48



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of:  Executive Director - Commercialisation (S151) 

  

To: Policy Development Panel Wednesday, 4 November 2020 

 

(Author: Julia Knight Manager - Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and Gardens) 

 

Subject Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Care & Conservation Policy 

 

Purpose: To consult with Policy Development Panel regarding Ayscoughfee Hall 

Museum’s Collections Care & Conservation Policy. 

 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the Panel considers the Policy, provides feedback and comments that it may wish to 

make in readiness for submission to the Portfolio Holder. 
 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum is Accredited by Arts Council England. The Accreditation 

scheme is a national framework for museums that lays out best practice guidelines and 

standards to follow, to ensure professionalism and consistency. 

 

1.2 Accredited status allows Ayscoughfee Hall Museum access to professional networks, 

training, support and funding. 

 

1.3 A key requirement for Accreditation is the need for two policies: Collections Development 

and Care & Conservation. 

 

1.4 The Care & Conservation Development Policy provides a generic framework within which 

all aspects of environmental management are deliverable at minimum sustainable levels 

and in accordance with agreed benchmark parameters, adhering to minimum standards of 

best practice in collections care. 

 

1.5 Arts Council England review each museum’s Accreditation on a regular basis, reviewing 

policies and ensuring that they have been discussed and approved by the relevant 

governing body. 

 

1.6 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s policies were last formally approved in 2012, but have been 

updated with minor revisions as best practice and industry guidance is received. 

 

1.7 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s Accreditation Review is due to take place in February 2021, 

having been paused during the Covid 19 pandemic. 

 

2.0 OPTIONS 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10.



2.1 To support the policy for submission to Portfolio Holder; or 

 

2.2 To support subject to comments for consideration by the Portfolio Holder; or 

 

2.3 Do nothing and continue to operate with existing policy.  

 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 In order to retain Accredited Status, Ayscoughfee Hall Museum is required to have a 

formally approved Collections Care & Conservation Policy, in line with Arts Council England 

requirements. 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum will retain Accredited status, meaning that funding can be 

applied for, and the Museum is recognised as a well-managed, professional museum. 

 

4.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s collection of historic objects and artefacts will continue to be 

managed in the correct way, to ensure their survival for the future. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 

5.1.1 This policy will support the environmentally conscious management of the collections. 

 

5.2 Corporate Priorities 

5.2.1 This policy supports the following Corporate Priority: 

Your Place- Lead, enable and embed the provision of a range of improved local 

community, cultural and arts facilities that support the enhanced wellbeing of South 

Holland’s communities. 

 

5.3 Financial 

5.3.1 The acceptance of this policy will enable Ayscoughfee Hall Museum to continue to be 

eligible for external funding that can only be awarded to Accredited organisations.   

 

 

 

5.4 Reputation 

5.4.1 If a suitable policy is not in place, and Accreditation is withdrawn, the reputation of 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and South Holland District Council, may be affected due to a 

perceived loss of professionalism in the management of the Museum and its collection. 

 

Page 50



5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 If a suitable policy is not in place, Ayscoughfee Hall Museum will lose its Accredited status, 

meaning that funding cannot be applied for, and the Museum is not recognised as a well-

managed, professional museum. 

 

5.5.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s collection of historic objects and artefacts will continue to be 

managed in the correct way, to ensure their survival for the future. 

 

5.6 Staffing 

5.6.1 Should the policy be agreed, all staff will be briefed and trained in any new operational 

details. 

 

5.7 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales 

5.7.1 Arts Council England Accreditation is reviewed every three years, with an expectation that 

policies will be updated, agreed and formally approved in line with the governing body’s 

usual timescales. 

 

5.7.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s Accreditation will next be reviewed in February 2021. 

 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 All 

 

 

Background papers:- none 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Julia Knight Manager - Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and Gardens 

Telephone Number  

Email: jknight@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

 

Exempt Decision: N  

 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Care & conservation Policy 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



    
 

South Holland District Council 
 

 
 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum  
Care and Conservation Policy 

 
 

September 2020 
 
 

Community Development 
 

Page 53



Page 2 of 8 

Document Control and History 
 
Version Control 

Issue No. Author Issue Date Reasons for Issue 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 
Approval of draft and final approval process 

Issue No. Approval 
Process 

Name Signature and Date 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 
Revision Schedule 

Issue No. Approval 
Process 

Name Signature and Date 

    

    

    

    

    

 
 
Added to Policy Register 

Yes/No Policy Officer Signature 
and Date 

Signature and Date 

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 54



Page 3 of 8 

CONTENTS 

 

Introduction ......................................................................... 4 

Scope – Policy Aim ............................................................. 4 

Legislation or Executive Summary ................................... 4 

Policy Consultation and Consideration ............................ 5 

Policy Statement ................................................................. 5 

Implementation .................................................................... 8 

 

Page 55



Page 4 of 8 

Introduction 
 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum was originally built in the 1450s. It is a Grade I listed 
building and was awarded this status by English Heritage in 2012. A Grade I 
listing indicates that the building is deemed to be very important and of national 
significance. Only 2.5% of Britain’s listed buildings are in this category. 

English Heritage carefully considers any application to alter the fabric of a listed 
building, and their permission must be obtained before any works are 
undertaken. As the managers of the Ayscoughfee Hall and Gardens Trust, SHDC 
is unable to grant itself listed building planning consent. 

Ayscoughfee Hall Museum reopened to the public in June 2006 following a 
project that saw the building refurbished and the Museum reinterpreted. This 
scheme was financed largely by the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) and they 
requested that the building, along with its history and development, be the main 
exhibit of the new Museum. 

The collections of Ayscoughfee Hall Museum are mainly comprised of social 
history material (hand and drainage tools, agricultural and rural craft items), 
textiles (predominantly working and domestic costume) and two- and three- 
dimensional objects relevant to the South Holland district. There is also a small 
but significant collection of fine and decorative art objects. 
 

Scope – Policy Aim 
The aim of this policy is to lay out the guidelines for- 

 A generic framework within which all aspects of environmental management 
are deliverable at minimum sustainable levels and in accordance with 
agreed benchmark parameters. 

 Adhering to minimum standards of best practice in collections care. 

 Appropriate responses to developments in national professional guidelines. 

 To build upon the concepts set out in the Ayscoughfee’s site Conservation 
Plan written by Anderson and Glenn in 2002. 

 The care and maintenance of Ayscoughfee Hall’s physical fabric. 

 The maintenance of the Museum’s internal environment. 

 The care of the Museum collections stored in the Hall and at off-site stores. 
 

It should be noted that the latter three elements are linked to each other and 
cannot be considered in isolation. 
 

Legislation or Executive Summary 
As a responsible museum, Ayscoughfee Hall has a duty of care to the objects in 
the permanent collection, and to the structure of the Hall itself. This latter is 
especially important since the Hall was awarded Grade I listed status in January 
2012. 
As trustees of the charity, South Holland District Council has a legal duty to apply 
trust funds appropriately, and in particular to maintain the Hall and Gardens in a 
suitable manner. 
 
 

Page 56



Page 5 of 8 

Policy Consultation and Consideration 
This policy has been written with proper regard to Arts Council England’s guidelines on 
museum collections development, taking into account all legal, moral and ethical 
guidelines. This policy follows the earlier Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections 
Development Policy, approved by Cllr Howard Johnson, Portfolio Holder in August 2012.          
 

 

Policy Statement 
1. The care and maintenance of Ayscoughfee Hall’s physical fabric 
 

1.1 The Hall is inspected on a monthly basis by the Museum’s staff. Any issues 
raised by these inspections are discussed with SHDC’s Asset & Property 
Team, in order to decide whether to deal with the issue immediately or alert 
the specialist maintenance contractors (see 1.3 below). 

1.2 The Museum’s Front of House staff routinely check the building as they 
prepare to open to the public and also at the end of the day. Any issues 
relating to the care and maintenance of the building are immediately brought 
to the attention of the Museum Manager and recorded on the day sheet. 

1.3 The Hall receives four visits each year from a specialist contractor who 
undertakes routine maintenance (cleaning gutters, clearing any vegetation 
growing next to the building, etc.), as well as dealing with any specific 
problems brought to their attention by the Museum’s staff following the 
monthly inspections. 

1.4 Advice is taken from SHDC’s Conservation Officer on any issues relating to 
the care and maintenance of Ayscoughfee Hall’s physical fabric or any 
improvements to the building, which, in the opinion of the Museum Manager 
and Asset & Property Team, are of a nature that cannot be progressed 
without reference to English Heritage. 

1.5 Any maintenance work is paid for from the Asset & Property Team’s Buildings 
Maintenance budgets. 

 

2. The maintenance of the Museum’s internal environment 

2.1 It is a fundamental aim of a museum to collect, display and preserve 
collections. The creation and maintenance of a stable environment is integral 
to the latter activity, as it is an important factor in prolonging the collection’s 
life span. 

2.2 Ayscoughfee Hall Museum’s collection comprises objects made of a variety of 
organic and inorganic materials. Each of these has optimum levels of relative 
humidity (RH) and temperature that together create an ideal environment for 
storage and display. Some of the RH and temperature values required by 
parts of the collection are unsuitable for others, so the ideal is always to 
create a balanced and stable environment that provides the best conditions 
for the most objects for the longest possible period. 

2.3 Many different elements have to be considered when attempting to create the 
balanced environment described in 2.2. It should be recognised that the 
Museum’s staff are able to control only a limited number of these factors due 
to the Hall’s listed status, and the restrictions that brings (see Introduction 
and 1.4, above). 

Page 57



Page 6 of 8 

 2.3.1 The historic nature of the Hall. The fifteenth century fabric of the 
building is not conducive to achieving the ideal balance of environmental 
conditions referred to in 2.2, as the Hall is not built of modern materials and 
was clearly not designed to be a museum. Moreover, Ayscoughfee Hall’s 
grade I listed status means that no substantial changes can be undertaken to 
make these standards easier to attain. 

 2.3.2 The Museum’s visitors. The fundamental reason for the existence of 
Ayscoughfee Hall Museum is to welcome visitors to this important building. 
Ironically, the more successful we are and the greater our footfall, the larger 
the fluctuations in the building’s RH and temperature. The use of humidifiers 
and dehumidifiers to control RH will be explored as budgets allow. Certain 
rooms will be given priority over others depending on their construction and 
contents. 

 2.3.3 Heating. There is an obligation to maintain a comfortable temperature 
for both staff and visitors, but this has an impact on the environment. The 
Museum’s heating is provided through electric radiators that were installed in 
2014, and which maintain a regular temperature. This varies throughout the 
Hall, with higher temperatures maintained during opening hours throughout 
public areas of the Hall. 

 2.3.4 Lighting. As budgets allow, the light bulbs used in the Hall are being 
changed to ones that use less energy and have a longer working life. This 
saves money and reduces the temperature within the Museum. 

 2.3.5 Pollutants. Neither the Hall nor the Museum’s off-site store (see 4.1 
below), are located in areas of high pollution but as the primary cause of air 
pollutants, traffic levels will continue to be monitored. 

 2.3.6 Cleaning. Cleaning is carried out 5 days of the week (Tues to Sat), 
before the Museum opens to the public, with major ‘deep’ cleaning taking 
place once a year. This is a vital part of the Museum’s maintenance and 
housekeeping programme. 

 2.3.7 Ambient light. The majority of windows in the Museum have had UV 
filters applied to them. These transparent films allow visible light through, but 
block the ultra violet wavelengths that are harmful to museum collections. 
These have a ten-year lifespan- as they were installed in 2007, they are due 
to be replaced.  

 2.3.8 Pests. Small pheromone traps are used to monitor insect activity. All 
indications are that these are at acceptably low levels, although areas of 
concern have been identified. These will continue to be monitored, with 
action being taken as required. 

2.4 The Museum’s internal environment is monitored through a system of twelve 
electronic transmitters, located throughout the building. The accompanying 
software allows for the current temperature and RH to be examined, and for 
previous readings to be scrutinised. These transmitters and the associated 
software are maintained annually, with regular reviews carried out by the 
Museum Manager to ensure acceptable levels. 

 

3. The care of the Museum collections stored in the Hall and at off-site 
stores 

Page 58



Page 7 of 8 

3.1 Three of the Museum’s rooms are given over to storage of the collections, 
while there is also an off-site facility on the former CSU depot in Holbeach. 
This comprises a brick building and a separate metal storage container which 
was installed in July 2009. 

3.2 Exactly like the collections stored in the Museum, the material in Holbeach 
comprises objects made of a variety of organic and inorganic materials. The 
environmental circumstances and requirements are the same as those 
outlined in 2.2. 

3.3 The environmental conditions in the brick building are deemed acceptable, 
but it is anticipated that those in the storage container will not be suitable in 
the long term. Consequently, the use of humidification equipment and other 
measures will be considered as budgets allow. 

3.4 The Holbeach store is checked regularly, and the collections stored there 
visually inspected for signs of damage. 

3.5 Pest management is more problematic at this store, therefore collections 
objects at the Holbeach store are those deemed by the Museum Manager to 
be at least risk of infestation. However, remedial work is required to treat 
several objects in the storage container for woodworm infestations. This will 
be carried out by AHMG team members, with reference to the Regional 
Collections Advisor. 

3.6 Ongoing collections audit and documentation will identify any need for 
remedial conservation. Any items identified as potentially in need of 
conservation will be reviewed by the Museum Manager, with suitable 
professional guidance sought as appropriate. 
Conservators will be identified using the Institute of Conservation (ICON), 
with funding made available from Ayscoughfee Hall Museum's budgets and 
external sources as required. 
 

3.7 South Holland District Council regularly reviews usage of its sites as part of 
its ongoing asset management, which may have an impact on the continued 
use of Ayscoughfee Hall Museum's offsite store. The Holbeach store has 
been identified as an asset for disposal. The Museum Manager will work with 
the relevant SHDC officers to identify a suitable alternative store, and plan 
the movement. 

 

4. Acceptable storage parameters 

4.1 Given the situation outlined above and the limitations on what measures can 
be undertaken given budgetary constraints and the Hall’s listed status, the 
following environmental parameters will be adopted for the collections stored 
and displayed in Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and the Holbeach store: 

4.1.1 Relative humidity. Maintain RH at a fixed point within the range 45% 
- 60% with fluctuations not exceeding 5%. 

4.1.2 Temperature. Maintain temperature at a fixed point between 10 – 15 
degrees centigrade, with fluctuations not exceeding one degree. 

4.1.3 Light. This is best dealt with by setting out acceptable levels of 
luminance for specific material, as they relate to the Museum’s collection. 
This is detailed in the table below. Storage areas only require lighting 
during periods of access; these are limited when compared to display 

Page 59



Page 8 of 8 

exposure. The majority of items in store are boxed or packaged and are 
therefore protected from the effects of light. 

 

Material Recommended 
maximum visible light 

level in lux 

Recommended 
maximum annual lux-

hours exposure 

Costume 50 96,000 

Textiles 50 96,000 

Watercolours 50 96,000 

Prints and drawings 50 96,000 

Parchment 50 96,000 

Paper 50 96,000 

Plastic 100 -200 192,000 – 384,000 

Oil and tempera 
paintings 

200 384,000 

Wood 200 384,000 

Black and white 
photographs 

200 384,000 

Metals 300 576,000 

Stone 300 576,000 

Glass 300 576,000 

Ceramics 300 576,000 

 
 
 

Implementation 
Responsibility for the implementation of this policy lies with the Museum Manager 
and Communities Manager. 
 
The Museum Manager will monitor the day-to-day conditions of the Hall and off-
site stores, as well as monitoring the maintenance contract and routine 
maintenance surveys. Any decisions required to maintain the Hall and/or off-site 
stores will be taken by the Communities Manager and Museum Manager in 
conjunction with South Holland District Council's Conservation Officer and Asset 
& Property Team. 
 

Date of policy 
 
September 2020 
 

Date of review 
 
September 2022 

 
 

Page 60



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Executive Director - 

Commercialisation (S151) 

  

To: Policy Development Panel Wednesday, 4 November 2020  

 

(Author: Nick Kendrick Health and Safety Advisor) 

 

Subject Corporate Health & Safety Policy 2020 

 

Purpose: To propose a revised Health and Safety Policy and to recommend its formal 

adoption and implementation 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the Policy Development Panel agree that the Policy should go to Cabinet for approval 

and adoption 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 imposes duties on South Holland Council, as 

an employer. These include: 

 

1. Adoption and review of a written Health and Safety Policy Statement; 

2. Ensuring, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health, safety and welfare at 

work of its employees; 

3. Ensuring, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health and safety of others 

visiting South Holland DC’s premises or using its services. 

 

1.2 The existing Health and Safety Policy has been in force since 2017 and is now due for 

review. This revised policy has been amended to take account of the changes in the 

Corporate Structure. The Policy is still applicable to both SHDC and BDC Councils and 

provides commonality. It has also been reviewed to ensure it remains up to date, is 

effective and relevant. 

 

1.3 The Head of Paid Service has overall responsibility for the implementation of the Policy. 

 

2.0 OPTIONS 

 

2.1 Agree the adoption of the revised Health and Safety Policy. 

 

2.2 Agree the adoption of the revised Health and Safety Policy with amendments. 

 

2.3 Do nothing. 

 

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 11.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 To ensure South Holland is in compliance with its statutory duties. 

 

3.2 To protect the health and safety and welfare of employees and the health and safety of 

visitors to South Holland’s premises or where services are provided by the Council. 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 To ensure compliance with the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and assist with 

consistent application of the policy across the Council. 

 

4.2 Better and more effective standards of Health and Safety Management. This will lead to 

better health and safety of the workplace. Less sickness, better morale and productivity. 

 

4.3 If the Council should face injury/compensation claims or legal enforcement action then the 

existence of an up-to-date Health and Safety Policy (which lays out the Council’s Health 

and Safety Management arrangements) is likely to reduce substantially the risk of 

successful claims. 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Constitutional & Legal 

 

5.1.1 It is a requirement of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 that employers with five or 

more employees produce and revise a written health and safety policy. 

 

5.1.2 The failure to have a Health and Safety Policy Statement is an offence and the Council 

could be liable for prosecution and also civil claims. 

 

5.2 Contracts 

 

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. However the 

management of contractors is captured by Health and Safety Law and the revised policy 

will assist this process. 

 

5.3 Corporate Priorities 

 

5.3.1 This proposal supports the corporate priority of “Our Council” as it recognises the 

 investment in and protection and safety of our workforce and others who may be affected 

 by our actions. 

 

 

Page 62



5.4 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 

5.4.1 Equal opportunities. South Holland has a duty to protect the health and safety of all staff, 

 members and visitors. 

 

5.5 Financial 

5.5.1 There are no direct financial implications of approving the policy. 

 

5.6  Health & Wellbeing 

 

5.6.1 This policy is fundamental in protecting the health and wellbeing of employees, and the 

protection of any other persons who could be affected by the Council’s undertakings. 

 

5.7 Reputation 

 

5.7.1 Compliance with Health and Safety legislation will safeguard the Council’s reputation. 

 

5.8 Risk Management 

 

5.8.1 The proposed policy is fundamental in laying down the framework for managing 

 occupational health and safety at work and reducing risk levels for employees and work 

 activities. 

 

5.9 Staffing 

 

5.9.1 There are no staffing implications by approving the policy. All staff will receive suitable and 

relevant training on their role and duties in ensuring the implementation of this policy. 

 

5.10 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales 

 

5.10.1 No further consultation is required. The Policy has already been to the relevant Health and 

Safety Groups and the relevant parties and stakeholders. At the present time Unison have 

no comments to make. 

 

6.0  WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 All 

 

7.0  ACRONYMS 

 

7.1  No acronyms used 

 

Background papers:- None. 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Nick Kendrick Health and Safety Manager 

Telephone Number 01775 764634 

Email: nick.kendrick@pspsl.co.uk 

 

Key Decision: No 

Page 63



 

Exempt Decision: No 

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A SHDC Health & Safety Policy 2020 

 

Page 64



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 1 
 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Health & Safety Policy 
General Statement of Intent & Arrangements 
(SHDC/HS/Policy) 
 
 
  

Page 65



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 2 
 

Contents 
 
Health & Safety Policy – General Statement of Intent ........................................................................................... 3 

SHDC’s Health & Safety Management .................................................................................................................... 4 

Policy Governance .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Health & Safety Policy – Arrangements .................................................................................................................. 5 

1. Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

2. Joint Emergency Planning, Strategic H & S Group .......................................................................................... 8 

3. Health & Safety Working Group ..................................................................................................................... 9 

4. Trade Unions .................................................................................................................................................. 9 

5. Health & Safety in Partnership Working & Contracted Out Work ................................................................. 9 

6. Enforcements & Penalties ............................................................................................................................ 10 

7. Policies, Procedures & Guidance .................................................................................................................. 10 

8. Health & Safety Training/Competence ......................................................................................................... 10 

9. Monitoring .................................................................................................................................................... 10 

10. Review .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

11. References .................................................................................................................................................... 10 

12. Related Documents ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

13. Document Control ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

 
 
 

  

Page 66



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 3 
 

Health & Safety Policy – General Statement of Intent 
South Holland District Council (SHDC) is committed to the health, safety and welfare of our employees and others 
who may be affected by our activities.  
 
We will make provisions for health, safety and wellbeing according to the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and 
subsequent regulations made under the Act.  As an organisation we will comply with our legislative requirements. 
 
We will provide, according to the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, so far as is reasonably practicable:  

 Safe plant and machinery; 

 Safe systems of work; 

 Safe handling, storage and use of substances; 

 Information, instruction, training and supervision so that employees are competent in their job; 

 Control and maintenance of the workplace; 

 Safe access and egress; 

 A safe working environment. 
 
SHDC recognises that employees are a vital asset, and is committed to the prevention of injury and ill health, and to 
the health, safety and welfare of non-employees, who may be affected by the Council’s work activities.   
 
We have developed various audit/inspection tools as our mechanism for achieving this.  In doing so, we will strive for 
continual improvement in our management of health and safety. 
  
SHDC will: 

 Recognise that safety is of paramount importance and an integral part of all its activities; 

 Be committed to the systematic identification of hazards, control of risk and compliance with applicable legal 
requirements and other requirements to which it subscribes; 

 Communicate and consult with employees on matters relating to the health and safety, policies, procedures 
guidance and performance monitoring; 

 Establish and maintain an effective health and safety management structure with individual posts having 
clearly defined safety responsibilities and competencies; 

 Provide adequate financial, human and physical resources to provide a working environment that protects 
the health and safety of our employees and those using our facilities. 

 
However, successful implementation will rely heavily on the co-operation of those who actually carry out the work 
and take the risks, to act responsibly and to do everything they can to prevent personal injury to themselves, other 
employees and those affected by our activities. 
 
The Head of Paid Services, Executive Management Team, Senior Managers, Line Managers and Supervisors have 
defined responsibilities for the management of health and safety, as detailed in the Arrangements under 
“Responsibilities”.  Their performance and that of SHDC as a whole will be regularly monitored. Details of the 
management structure and the arrangements for implementing the Policy are contained within this document. 
 
The overall responsibility for this Policy rests with the Leader of the Council and the Head of Paid Services.  They will 
be assisted by the Executive Management Team and PSPS’ Health & Safety Team in ensuring that the Health & 
Safety Policy is implemented, developed, monitored and reviewed. 
 
 
Signed: ______________________________________ (Leader of the Council)     Dated: _______________________ 
   
 
 
Signed: ______________________________________ (Head of Paid Services) Dated: _______________________ 

Page 67



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 4 
 

 SHDC’s Health & Safety Management 
 

 
  

POLICY 

“General Statement of Intent” 
regarding Health & Safety 

Signed by the Leader of the 
Council & Head of Paid Services 

Organisation Health & Safety 
Policy 

A written statement of SHDC’s 
Policy and organisational 

arrangements – Signed by the 
Leader of the Council & Head 

of Paid Services 

Corporate Health & Safety 
Procedures  

providing detail on specific 
subjects 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

Head of Paid Services 

Responsible for compliance with 
health and safety Legislation 

Executive Management Team 
and Senior Managers 

Responsible for ensuring 
compliance with legislation, 

policies and procedures within 
their services 

Line Managers & Supervisors 

Responsible for ensuring 
compliance with legislation, 

policies and procedures within 
their area of control 

Designated Employees 

Carry out additional specified 
health & safety related duties 

Organisation Employees 

Responsible for their own health 
& safety and that of others who 
may be affected by their work 

SUPPORT & 
ADVICE 

Champion of Health & Safety 
Shared Public Protection 

Manager on Health & Safety 
issues with ability to feed into  
Executive Management Team 

level 

PSPS' Health & Safety Team 
Provides advice, support, 

guidance and training, 
undertakes audits and 

inspection, and maintains the 
Health & Safety Management 

system. 

Trade Union appointments and 
Safety Representatives who 

represent employees on health 
& safety issues, and carry out 
health & safety Inspections. 

Senior Management Team 
Review health & safety 

performance and related issues.  

Trade Union Liaison  
Discuss new and emerging 
health, safety and related 

issues. 

Health & Safety Training 
Provided or supported by PSPS' 

Health & Safety Team and 
external organisations 

VERIFIERS 

PSPS' Health & Safety Team / 
Joint Emergency Planning, 

strategic H & S Group / SHDC's 
Health & Safety Working 

Group / Internal / External 
Audit 

Verification through audits, 
inspections and reports 

Organisation Insurers / Trade 
Union Reps 

External verification of 
compliance  

Page 68



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 5 
 

Policy Governance 
 

The following table identifies who is accountable, responsible, informed or consulted with in regard to this 
procedure. 

 Responsible – the person(s) responsible for developing the procedure; 

 Accountable – the person(s) who has ultimate accountability and authority for the procedure; 

 Consulted – the person(s) or groups to be consulted prior to final procedure implementation or 
amendment; 

 Informed – the person(s) or groups to be informed after procedure implementation or amendment. 
 

 
Responsible 
 

 
Executive Director for Place and PSPS’ Health & Safety Manager 

 
Accountable 
 

 
Head of Paid Services 

 
Consulted 
 

 
Joint Emergency Planning, Strategic H & S Group & SHDC’s Health & Safety Working Group 
Members (including representation from unions recognised by SHDC). 
 

 
Informed 
 

 
ALL employees of SHDC 

 

Health & Safety Policy – Arrangements 
 

1. Responsibilities 
 
Whilst SHDC, as the employer, has overall responsibility for ensuring the health, safety and welfare of all its 
employees, and those not in their employ, various aspects of the Health & Safety Policy have been delegated as 
shown below: 
 
The Leader of the Council & Elected Members have significant influence and responsibility for health and safety in 
terms of providing leadership, direction, strategy and appropriate budget setting allowing for the safe management 
of health and safety.  They are not responsible for day-to-day management of health and safety.   

 
The Head of Paid Services shall have overall responsibility for health and safety across SHDC, and lead in setting 
corporate Policy and direction. 
 
Executive and Senior Management Teams are responsible for: 

 Supporting the Head of Paid Services in meeting their health and safety responsibilities for SHDC. 

 Ensuring that that robust health and safety management systems exist within SHDC and that all Service 
Areas demonstrate compliance. 
 

Champion of Health & Safety (Shared Public Protection Manager) leads on health and safety issues at the senior 
management team level, including: 

 Providing overall support and direction to PSPS’ Health & Safety Team; 

 Chairing SHDC’s Health & Safety Working Group on behalf of the Executive Director for Place.  
 
Joint Emergency Planning, Strategic H & S Group sits between both Breckland and South Holland Council’s, and 
exists to formally sign-off Health and Safety Policies and Procedures, reports and guidance. It will also monitor 
performance and hold managers to account for non-compliance in their respective areas. These meetings will be 
chaired by the Executive Director for Place, who sits on the Executive Management Team (EMT). 
 

Page 69



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 6 
 

Health & Safety Working Group is responsible for ensuring effective communication, and consultation in matters 
involving the health, safety and welfare of all those affected by the work of SHDC.   
 
Service Managers are accountable to the Head of Paid Services and Executive and Senior Management Teams for 
ensuring that SHDC’s Health & Safety Policy and procedures are complied with within their Service Areas.  Duties 
may be delegated (but not responsibility) to their Managers, and other delegated employees as necessary, but they 
remain responsible for: 

 Being familiar with SHDC’s Health & Safety Policy and procedures, and any relevant risk assessments and 
safe systems of work; 

 Providing leadership on occupational health and safety; 

 Ensuring the availability of resources essential to establish, implement, maintain and improve the health and 
safety management system; 

 Defining roles, allocating responsibilities and accountabilities, and delegating authorities, to facilitate 
effective health and safety management; 

 Ensuring by means of job descriptions or by other means such as annual reviews that Managers, and others 
in supervisory roles, are made aware of the areas and extent to their specific health and safety 
responsibilities; 

 Ensuring that such measures necessary (including disciplinary action, training, etc.) are taken to prevent, so 
far as is reasonably practicable, any breach of health and safety procedures or legislation; 

 Co-operating with trade union health and safety representatives in accordance with agreed processes; 

 Ensuring adequate inspections and monitoring of health and safety procedures are undertaken; 

 Ensuring the systematic assessment of hazards and the effective implementation of risk management 
systems; 

 Ensuring the maintenance of statutory and other testing and examination of equipment and the keeping of 
registers and records where necessary is undertaken; 

 Ensuring the necessary information, instruction, training and supervision is provided to their employees; 

 Keeping themselves informed of incidents or accidents within their area of control, and ensure that action is 
taken in order to prevent recurrence; 

 Ensuring the effective safety management of contractors carrying out works within their area of 
responsibility; 

 Providing adequate time and facilities for safety representatives; 

 Ensuring that the necessary resources are available to employees to fulfil their health and safety obligations; 

 Appointing suitable trained and qualified “designated employees” to carry out specified health and safety 
duties within their Service Areas; 

 
Line Managers and Supervisors are accountable for the effective implementation of the Health & Safety Policy and 
procedures within their area of control.  Whilst some duties may be specifically designated, those having a 
management or supervisory responsibility will be responsible for: 

 Ensuring they are familiar with SHDC’s Health & Safety Policy and procedures and any relevant risk 
assessments and safe systems of work; 

 Ensuring they are aware of health and safety requirements and provide information, instruction, training and 
supervision to new and existing employees under their control to ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, 
their health and safety and that of others affected by their activity; 

 Carrying out a first day induction for all new employees, agency workers and contractors; 

 Ensuring that employees under their control are adequately trained and fully aware of the hazards involved 
in the work undertaken; 

 Communicating the key findings of risk assessments related to the work undertaken by employees under 
their control; 

 Developing safe systems of work and, by information, instruction, training and supervision, particularly in 
the case of young and inexperienced workers, ensure maximum safety for all employees; 

 Ensuring that any information, instruction and training is understood and recorded; 

 Reporting and investigating all accidents, incidents, near misses and violent and aggressive incidents with a 
view to taking such measures to prevent recurrence; 

Page 70



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 7 
 

 Undertaking inspections and monitoring to ensure that safety measures are being maintained and that all 
employees are following safety instructions and safe practices; 

 Ensuring that Team Meetings regularly occur and always include Health & Safety as a standing item, 
providing opportunities for employees to be consulted on matters which affect their health, safety and 
wellbeing; 

 Co-operating with trade union health and safety representatives in accordance with agreed processes; 

 Arranging for the provision of safety equipment and protective clothing, where necessary; 

 Ensuring all training is completed in a timely manner to ensure compliance; 

 Ensuring, where employees work away from their normal office location, that their health and safety is 
suitably managed e.g. Home working 

 
Designated Employees – Management may designate specific employees to carry out specified health and safety 
duties in addition to their normal duties and responsibilities.  This may include for example: 

 Champion of Health & Safety; 

 Health & Safety Working Group Members; 

 Fire Wardens; 

 First Aiders / Appointed Persons. 
 
ALL Employees: 

 Must familiarise them with, and conform to, SHDC’s Health & Safety Policy, procedures and/or guidance; 

 Must work with due regard to the health and safety of themselves and that of others who may be affected 
by their work/activities; 

 Must co-operate with SHDC, including complying with all safety instructions given by their line management, 
to ensure that its obligations with regards to health and safety are complied with; 

 Must notify their Line Manager/Supervisor immediately of any health and safety issues or concerns that they 
have, are not able to put right or are outside their control; 

 Must report all accidents, incidents and near misses to their Line Manager/Supervisor; 

 Must not interfere with, or misuse, anything provided by SHDC in the interest of health and safety;  

 Must ensure that all tools and equipment provided by SHDC are properly used in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s, supplier’s and/or installer’s instructions and report any defects to their Line 
Manager/Supervisor immediately;  

 Are required to complete any relevant health and safety training assigned to them by SHDC; 

 When working away from their normal office environment, must ensure they consider their own health and 
safety and that of others who may be affected by their work e.g. Home working... 

 When working in a different building, they also have a duty to make themselves aware of the local rules and 
procedures for that building, and adhere to these. 

 
PSPS’ Health & Safety Team (Competent Persons) oversees the implementation of the Health & Safety Policy and 
procedures on behalf of SHDC, ensuring they comply with current legislation.  In particular, PSPS’ Health & Safety 
Team has a responsibility to: 

 Provide advice, guidance and support to SHDC on all health, safety and welfare, including on:  
o New legislation and its impact on SHDC 
o Risk assessments, where appropriate; 
o Safe systems of work  for operations undertaken by SHDC and review and report on safety 

recommendations issued; 
o The management of contractors; 

 Develop and review the corporate Health & Safety Policy, procedures and guidance which provide detail on 
specific health and safety requirements; 

 Manage and maintain SHDC’s health and safety management framework; 

 Audit and inspect as necessary SHDC’s operations and advise appropriate Directors, Service Managers, Line 
Managers and Supervisors of any actions necessary to ensure compliance with the Policy and procedures, 
recording/monitoring high-risk actions; 

 Maintain an overview of fire safety within SHDC, including within premises occupied by SHDC’s employees; 

Page 71



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 8 
 

 Provide quarterly health and safety performance reports to the Joint Emergency Planning, Strategic H & S 
Group and the Health & Safety Working Group and an annual health and safety performance report to the 
Head of Paid Services and Executive Management Team. 

 Attend Health & Safety Working Group meetings to highlight/report on health and safety matters; 

 Advise on and, as necessary, facilitate the provision of training courses in accordance with the corporate 
training programme, including induction training and e-learning, and ensuring compliance; 

 Investigate, as necessary, accidents, incidents and near misses and recommend corrective action; 

 Disseminate new information on health and safety matters as appropriate; 

 Take immediate direct action in cases of imminent danger, where that action cannot be taken by Managers 
or Supervisors; 

 Record and review details of accidents, incidents or near misses at work and provide advice on ways in which 
recurrence could be minimised. 

 Liaise, where required, with the Health & Safety Executive (HSE) and other enforcement authorities and 
external bodies on health and safety issues. 

 
Human Resources Team are responsible for: 
Ensuring that the employee information provided to PSPS’ Health & Safety Team is accurate and up to date. 
 
Contractors and Business Tenants must: 

 Effectively and efficiently co-operate and communicate with SHDC on all relevant health and safety matters 
before and during their tenure with SHDC. 

 Meet the health and safety standards required of them in the performance of the work activities undertaken 
with or on behalf of SHDC. 

 
Safety Representatives, both Trade Union and employees, are able to exercise their rights to: 

 Get involved in investigations for reportable accidents/incidents; 

 Represent the views of the employees to Manager and to HSE Inspectors. 

 Undertake inspections of the workplace and formally report back to Management and PSPS’ Health & Safety 
Team. 

 Be consulted on any changes to corporate and local documentation. 
 
Clients, Service Users and Members of the Public are requested to co-operate with the health and safety 
arrangements put in place by SHDC to protect them and the people who are providing a service to them. 

 

2. Joint Emergency Planning, Strategic H & S Group 
The Group oversees the Health and Safety Compliance for both Breckland and South Holland District Council’s.  

This group is critical to ensuring the Joint Management Team for both Council’s are informed on their current 

standing in respect of Health and Safety. 

The Joint Group will meet: 

 Once every four months; 

 To receive, review and question the Quarterly reports provided by the PSPS H & S Team; 

 To formally sign-off Health and Safety Policies and Procedures, reports and guidance; 

 To monitor both Councils’ H & S performance and hold managers to account for non-compliance in their 
respective areas; 

 To consider any safety audit and inspection reports of SHDC’s work places and/or activities and contribute to 
any improvement plan; 

 
The membership of the Joint Group shall be as follows: 

 Executive Manager for Place (Chair) 

 Representative(s) from PSPS’ Health & Safety Team 

 Representative(s) from Emergency Planning Teams 

Page 72



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 9 
 

 Representative(s) from SHDC Human Resources and PSPS Human Resources (Representing SHDC) 

 Place Managers from both South Holland and Breckland Council’s 
 

3. Health & Safety Working Group 
 
SHDC’s Health & Safety Working Group exists to ensure effective communication, monitoring of performance and 
consultation in matters involving the health, safety and welfare of all those affected by the work of SHDC.   
 
The Working Group will meet: 

 Once every six months; 

 To review SHDC’s Policy and procedures for health, safety and welfare, both statutory and otherwise and 
monitor their effectiveness; 

 To act as a consultation mechanism for employees of SHDC; 

 To review forthcoming legislation, assess its implications and where appropriate make recommended 
changes to existing policies/practices or contribute to the development of new ones;   

 Consider and take action as appropriate on reports from Trade Union appointed Safety Representatives; 

 To receive safety data relating to reportable (and non-reportable) accidents, incidents and near misses to 
consider the effectiveness of any remedial action taken to prevent future similar incidents; 

 To consider reports and factual information provided by inspectors of the HSE under the Health & Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974, or any other relevant enforcement authority and to establish and maintain effective 
links with such persons; 

 To consider relevant health, safety and welfare matters raised by members of the Working Group that 
remain unresolved after management intervention; and 

 To note the appointment and consider the activities of Trade Union Safety Representatives as required by 
the relevant legislation. 

 
The membership of the Working Group shall be as follows: 

 Shared Public Protection Manager (Chair) 

 Representative(s) from PSPS’ Health & Safety Team 

 Representative(s) from recognised Trade Unions 

 Representative(s) from each Service Area 
 

4. Trade Unions 
 
SHDC is committed to working with the recognised trade unions with regards to the appointment of safety 
representatives, co-operation on inspections and fulfilling ‘safety committee’ requirements of Regulation 9 of the 
Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations 1977. 

 
5. Health & Safety in Partnership Working & Contracted Out Work 
 
The responsibilities for health and safety in partnership working and contracted out work will be determined by the 
nature of the contract between SHDC and the partner/contractor.   
 
Construction contracts will be governed by The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015 (CDM 
2015), other contracts will be subject to SHDC’s procurement rules and the Contractor Management procedure 
which is available on the intranet.  
 
Contracting out work or services does not exclude SHDC from its health and safety responsibilities or risk from 
prosecution. 

 

  

Page 73



SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 10 
 

6. Enforcements & Penalties 
 
Enforcement and penalties for breaches of health and safety law fall under the Health & Safety Executive in 
conjunction with the “fee for intervention” and “sentencing” structure.   
 
The HSE can issue a notification of contravention, an improvement or prohibition notice, or a prosecution where 
they believe there has been a “material  breach” of health and safety legislation. 
 

7. Policies, Procedures & Guidance 
 
SHDC’s Health & Safety Policy and procedures have been developed on specific hazards encountered within SHDC.  
These are available in the Health & Safety section on SHDC’s Intranet. 
 

8. Health & Safety Training/Competence 
 
The health and safety training requirements for all employees will be identified on recruitment and at the 
individual’s annual appraisal.  Key corporate health and safety training is documented in SHDC’s Health & Safety 
Training Matrix on the intranet.   
 
Advice on specialist courses is available from PSPS’ Health & Safety Team. 
 

9. Monitoring 
 
The monitoring of this Policy will be carried out by PSPS’ Health & Safety Team, actively through health and safety 
auditing and inspections and reactively by the investigation of accident, incidents, near miss, violent incidents and ill 
health statistics produced and reported on a regular basis.  
 
All monitoring activity will be reported to the Joint Emergency Planning, Strategic, H & S Group and if necessary 
escalated to the Executive Management Team.  
 
An annual Health & Safety Performance Report will, as a minimum, be provided to SHDC by PSPS’ Health & Safety 
Team. 
 

10. Review 
 
This procedure will be subject to a review every three years by PSPS’ Health & Safety Team or sooner should there 
be changes to health and safety legislation and guidance to/within SHDC, or a change of circumstances that dictate a 
review.   
 
Details of the review and any recommendation will be provided to the Joint Emergency Planning and H & S Group. 

 

11. References 
 

 HSE’s Website – Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 

 HSE’s Website – Managing for Health & Safety  

 Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations, 1999 
 

12. Related Documents 
 

 Health & Safety Training Matrix 

 Contractor Management Procedure 
 

Page 74

http://selfserveshdc/HAS/default.aspx
http://www.hse.gov.uk/legislation/hswa.htm
http://www.hse.gov.uk/managing/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1999/3242/contents/made


SHDC - Health & Safety Policy (SHDC/HS/Policy) - Issue V0.3 – 22/10/2020   Page | 11 
 

13.  Document Control 
 
Version & Approval Control 

Issue Number Author/Approver Issue Date Reason for Issue 

0.1 PSPS Health & Safety Team 25/03/2020 Redevelopment of previous Policy – Issued only to 
Sarah Shipley 

0.2 SHDC SMT 15/09/2020 Revisions after consultation with SMT 

0.3 PSPS Health & Safety Team 22/10/2020 Minor revisions after consultation with SHDC H & 
S Group 

    

    

    

    

 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Licensing and Business Support Manager 

 

To: Policy Development Panel 4th November 2020 

 Committee of the Licensing Authority 5th November 2020 

 South Holland District Council 25th November 

 

(Author: Donna Hall Licensing and Business Support Manager) 

 

Subject Revised Statement of Licensing Policy 

 

Purpose: To consider the proposed draft Statement of Licensing Policy (2021 to 2026) 

 

 
Recommendation:  
 
1) That the Panel consider the draft updated policy and provide feedback 

 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Council is required to have a “Statement of Licensing Policy” for their area to guide 

them when considering licence applications and controlling licensed premises.  

 

1.2 The previous policy was approved in December 2015 and took effect in January 2016. The 

policy is required to be reviewed at least every 5 years. 

 

1.3   The draft policy which is attached at Appendix A, has been fully rewritten from the previous 

2016 version, bringing it up to date and presenting it in a better, more user-friendly format. 

It has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of section 5 of the Licensing Act 

2003 and the revised Home Office Guidance made under section 182 of the Act.  

 

1.4  South Holland District Council is responsible for the licensing of all licensable activities 

under the Licensing Act 2003. These are as follows: 

 Retail sale of alcohol 

 Supply of alcohol to club members 

 Provision of entertainment to the public or club members or with a view to making 

profit, including raising money for charity, where the entertainment involves: 

o A theatrical performance 

o Film exhibition 

o Indoor sporting event 

o Boxing or Wrestling 

o Live Music 

o Recorded Music 

o A performance of dance 

 The provision of late night refreshment – Supply of hot food and drink from a 

premises between 23:00 and 05:00 

1.5  The policy is concerned with the regulation of these activities on licensed premises, 

qualifying clubs and at temporary events. It aims to ensure a consistent approach to 

Page 77

Agenda Item 12.



licensing in South Holland to assist officers and members in reaching a decision on a 

particular application or licence.  

 

1.6  In addition, the Policy seeks to provide clarity for applicants, ‘other persons’ (any individual, 

body or business entitled to make representation to an application under the Act) and 

Responsible Authorities’ to enable them to understand the objectives being promoted and 

the matters that will be considered when determining licences.  

 

1.7  The following points explain how the new draft policy differs from the 2016 adopted Policy:  

 The format - the Policy has to explain a large amount of information to a variety of 

audiences and also has to satisfy the technical and statutory requirements of the Licensing 

Act. It has therefore been formatted into the new easier to navigate document. 

 

 The wording - Where possible everyday words have been used rather than technical 

terminology, especially so for the broad range of consultees the Authority is required to 

consult with, including those people who should be involved in local decisions but are 

considered hard to reach.  People considered hard to reach are so because of an 

impairment, language or cultural difference, social expectation, time limits, rural isolation or 

financial constraint. There is no single list that defines all groups of people we find hard to 

reach. 

 

 Part 1, 2 & 3  - are reworked from the original policy and expanded in keeping with modern 

policy writing and compliance with s.182 guidance.  S.182 recommends the policy has clear 

indications of how the licensing authority will secure the proper integration of its licensing 

policy with local crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism, equality schemes, cultural 

strategies and any other plans introduced for the management of town centres and the 

night-time economy.  

o Delegation of Function – NEW s.182 requirement 

o Promotion of Equality – Equality Act 2010 – NEW s.182 requirement 

o Immigration Act 2016 – NEW s.182 requirement 

o Protection of Privacy and Data Protection – NEW s.182 requirement 

o Other Legislation – condensed from 2015 policy into easier read format 

 

 Part 4 – Promotion of Licensing Objectives  

Reworked to so that each objective leads with the principles under which the council will 

carry out its function and the responsibility it has to do so. 

Crime and Disorder – inclusion of the need for staff training and supervision.   

Public safety – New first sentence defining public safety. 

Nuisance – additional advice for applicants to consult with Environmental Health for advice 

on safety measures if appropriate.  Additional wording to recognise within the Act the 

authority has the right to refuse an application where conditions do not adequately address 

issues of the prevention of nuisance. 

Protection of Children – reconfigured as original policy had duplication and updated with 

s.182 guidance to include new categories of harm (moral, psychological and 

physical).  New wording to comply with s.182 requirement that LA’s give “considerable 

weight to representations about child health and the use of health data about the harms of 

alcohol”. 

 

 Part 5 – General Licensing Principles 

Page 78



Reworked for cohesiveness 

Hours – updated - setting out the licensing authority’s approach regarding licensed opening 

hours and the strategy it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

Conditions – updated with wording about conditions relating to the premises and the focus 

for conditions will be on direct impact regardless of the persons geographical proximity. 

Risk Assessments – s.182 requirement referenced throughout to uphold the licensing 

objectives 

Representations – specific inclusion of S103 Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act 

2011 allowing the LA to make its own representations  

 

 Part 6 – Applications 

New introductory paragraph referencing a self service approach to making an application, 

explaining in plain English how to “serve” an application and advising applicants seek 

advice before making application thereby reducing the burden on the authority. 

Premise Licence and Club Certificate – s.182 updates providing targeted advice to 

applicants and recognising the difference between the two entities. 

Regulated Entertainment – s.182 updates – given its own specific heading for clarity and 

providing advice and signposting for applicants 

Operating Schedule – s.182 requirement – as above and setting out what the Licensing 

Authority expects an operating schedule to be completed with, with regard to the LA03 

policy 

            Designated Premise Supervisor s.182 requirement – as above 

Staff Training s.182 requirement - the policy explains the responsibility incumbent on 

operators to provide the same to the promotion of the licensing objectives 

Personal Licences – Expanded section providing guidance and signposting and to support 

the committee in its decision making where it has no discretion. 

               

 Part 7 Cumulative Impact 

Repealed legislation removed and section updated in light of revised s.182 guidance 

 

 Part 8 – Sexual Entertainment Venues 

No change 

 

 Part 9 Enforcement, Reviews and Appeals – NEW  

This section has been significantly expanded in keeping with s.182 guidance to include 

specific sub headings on appeals, closure orders, suspension for non-payment of annual 

fees and reviews. 

 

1.8  A 6 week consultation has been carried out with the public, responsible authorities and 

licensed businesses. Following the close of the consultation on the 23rd October, all 

feedback has been considered. Feedback was gratefully received from the following: 

 

 Sergeant Enderby, Lincolnshire Police Alcohol licensing Team:  

Requested “further measures to tackle street drinking including not selling single cans or 

bottles of beer, lager and cider, not selling super strength (ABV above 6.5) beer, lager or 

cider and attaching water proof labels with printed shop names and addresses to cans and 

bottles of beer, lager and cider (or all alcohol sold) could assist in improving conditions on 

off sale type licences, be it new, updated, or found needing improvement, within PSPO 

areas for street drinking, littering and public urination and defecation.  

 

Page 79



A specific paragraph detailing the importance of CCTV as this promotes all the licensing 

objectives.  Wording similar to ‘CCTV remains one of the most effective measures for 

reducing crime and disorder. The Licensing Authority expects premises that retail alcohol 

for consumption on or off the premises will have an effective CCTV system installed that 

operates in compliance with the requirements of Lincolnshire Police’” 

  

 These recommendations are to be discussed at the Committee of the Licensing Authority 

on 5th November 2020. 

 

 Alan Simpson, Community Alcohol Partnerships Advisor:  

Requested acknowledgement of the Community Alcohol Partnership in Spalding which has 

been included in the draft Policy. 

 

 Representative of Deeping St Nicholas Village Hall:  

 Queried application of the section in 6.8 of the policy relating to Temporary Events and 

raising concerns that the requirements outlined elsewhere in the document would be 

disproportionate if applied to small events such as a small village fete held once a year. 

Whilst the Licensing Team will always try to provide a practical and proportionate approach 

to licensing, we are unable to divert away from the law which is intended to be a light touch 

approach to temporary events. Further discussion will be had with representatives of this 

facility to see if concerns can be alleviated. 

 

Dee Bedford, Community Safety and Enforcement Manager SHDC: 

Requested updates and clarification in relation the PSPO and Safer Lincolnshire Code of 

Practice which have been incorporated. 

  

   

2.0 OPTIONS 

 

2.1 Consider and provide feedback on the draft policy 

2.2 Do nothing 

 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 The policy is required to be reviewed at least every 5 years and needs to be adopted by 

January 2021. 

 

3.2 A full consultation has been carried out. The policy will be further considered at the 

Committee of the Licensing Authority on the 5th November with a recommendation that it 

goes to Full Council for approval. 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 Revising the Licensing Policy Statement enables the Council to remain compliant with its 

duties under the Licensing Act 2003 and hold a policy that is up to date, transparent and 

legal. Consultation is important to ensure that the policy reflects the needs and priorities of 

our businesses, customers and responsible authorities.  

 

 

Page 80



5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 

5.1.1 Where possible, the consultation has been carried out using digital means such as email, 

social media and the Council website 

 

5.2 Constitutional & Legal 

5.2.1 The review of the policy is in line with the Council’s Constitution and in accordance with the 

Licensing Act 2003. 

 

5.3 Corporate Priorities 

5.3.1 The new draft policy supports all of the Corporate Priorities 

 

5.4 Crime and Disorder 

5.4.1 The draft policy takes in to account all relevant legal provisions of licensing legislation and 

is designed to promote all four Licensing Objectives, including the Prevention of Crime and 

Disorder 

 

5.5 Data Protection 

5.5.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessment has been carried out to ensure compliance 

 

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 

5.6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out to ensure that the consultation 

process and the draft policy itself upholds the principles of equality and diversity, and does 

not discriminate 

 

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 The policy does not present any financial implications for the Council 

 

5.8 Health & Wellbeing 

5.8.1 “Public Health” is not currently a statutory licensing objective; however, the policy does 

address alcohol related harm. The Director of Public Health is also a responsible authority 

and consultee for this policy.  

 

5.9 Safeguarding 

5.9.1 The draft policy promotes the licensing objective of the “Protection of Children from Harm” 

and the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children’s partnership are a responsible authority and a 

consultee 

 

5.10 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales 

5.10.1 A list of the stakeholders that have been consulted are listed in Part 2 of the draft policy. A 

number of other local organisations were also identified and contacted. The consultation 

period ran for 6 weeks, during which time the draft policy was also posted on the council 

Page 81



website. 

 

 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 All 

 

 

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Donna Hall, Licensing and Business Support Manager 

Telephone Number  

Email: donna.hall@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

Exempt Decision: N  

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Draft Licensing Policy 

 

Page 82



 

0 
 

 

South Holland District Council 

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-

2026 
 

Licensing Act 2003 

Further advice can be obtained from: 

Licensing Team 

South Holland District Council 

Priory Road 

Spalding 

Lincolnshire 

PE11 2XE 

Tel: 01775 761161 

licensing@sholland.gov.uk  

www.sholland.gov.uk  

Please note:  

The information contained within this document can be made available in different 

languages and formats including Braille, large print, ReciteMe.  

 

 

Page 83

mailto:licensing@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@sholland.gov.uk
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


 

1 
 

Contents 
South Holland District Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 ............................................ 0 

Part 1 Introduction and the South Holland District ..................................................................... 3 

Part 2 Background ......................................................................................................................... 4 

The Purpose and Scope of the Licensing Policy .............................................................................. 4 

Part 3 Integrating other guidance, policies and Legislation ........................................................ 6 

Delegation of Function .................................................................................................................... 7 

Promotion of Equality - Equality Act 2010 ...................................................................................... 8 

Immigration Act 2016 ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Protection of Privacy and Data Protection ..................................................................................... 9 

Planning........................................................................................................................................... 9 

Other Legislation ........................................................................................................................... 10 

Part 4 Promotion of the Licensing Objectives ............................................................................ 10 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder ................................................................................................ 11 

Public Safety .................................................................................................................................. 12 

Prevention of Public Nuisance ...................................................................................................... 13 

The Protection of Children from Harm ......................................................................................... 15 

Part 5 General Licensing Principles ............................................................................................. 18 

Minor Variations ........................................................................................................................... 18 

Hours ............................................................................................................................................. 18 

Conditions ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Risk Assessments .......................................................................................................................... 20 

Representations ............................................................................................................................ 20 

Large Scale Events of More than 500 people ............................................................................... 21 

Excessive Consumption of Alcohol ............................................................................................... 22 

Part 6 Applications ..................................................................................................................... 23 

Premise Licence and Club Premises Certificate ............................................................................ 23 

Regulated Entertainment .............................................................................................................. 24 

Operating Schedule ....................................................................................................................... 24 

Designated Premises Supervisor ................................................................................................... 25 

Staff Training ................................................................................................................................. 25 

Personal Licences .......................................................................................................................... 25 

Temporary Event Notice (TEN’s) ................................................................................................... 26 

Part 7 Cumulative Impact .......................................................................................................... 27 

Part 8 Sexual Entertainment Venues .......................................................................................... 29 

Part 9 Enforcement, Reviews and Appeals ................................................................................ 29 

Page 84



 

2 
 

Enforcement ................................................................................................................................. 29 

Suspension of Licences and Certificates for non-payment of annual fees ................................... 29 

Review of Licences ........................................................................................................................ 30 

Closure Orders .............................................................................................................................. 30 

Appeals .......................................................................................................................................... 30 

Part 10 Further Information ......................................................................................................... 31 

Appendices ....................................................................................................................................... 32 

Appendix 1 – Delegation of Functions .......................................................................................... 32 

Appendix 2 – Responsible Authorities .......................................................................................... 33 

 

 
  

Page 85



 

3 
 

Part 1 Introduction and the South Holland District 

1.1 South Holland District Council is one of seven districts situated in the County of Lincolnshire. 

At the time of the 2011 census the South Holland District Council area had a population of 

approximately 88,300 in 37,264 households. The population has increased by 5 per cent to 

approximately 92,400. The district extends over a geographical area of approximately 750 

square kilometres or 290 square miles. The district is situated in the south Eastern corner of 

Lincolnshire and borders The Wash and the neighbouring districts of Cambridgeshire and 

Norfolk. It is mainly a rural district comprising a total of 47 towns and villages. The main 

town for the district is Spalding.  

Over recent years South Holland has experienced significant levels of growth in licensable 

activities coupled with a significant increase in residential development. The close proximity 

of a range of land uses and the creation of mixed use schemes has many benefits including 

the creation of a vibrant economy. Our vision is to make South Holland a place of prosperity, 

wellbeing and opportunity for all. 

South Holland District Council is a major provider of facilities for public recreation. The 

Council has a tradition of promoting a broad range of cultural activity for the benefit of the 

community including the rural and community touring scheme, the South Holland Centre, 

the annual Open Arts Exhibition and Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and Gardens.  

Within local communities, associations and community groups use church and village halls 

and community centres for social and fund raising activities. Within the district there are a 

number of church halls, village halls and schools licensed for regulated entertainment and 

/or for the sale or supply of alcohol. 

At the time of adopting this policy the Licensing Authority is responsible for: 

 303 Premise Licences 

 18 Club Premises Certificates 

 1204 Personal Licences 

Page 86



 

4 
 

SHDC Boundary Map 

 

 

Part 2 Background 

The Purpose and Scope of the Licensing Policy 

2.1  The purpose of the licensing function is to promote the licensing objectives through the 

effective regulation of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and temporary events. The 

Licensing Authority is keen to promote a safe and vibrant economy and will work with 

applicants and licence holders to encourage and sustain well managed premises which make 

a positive contribution to the community.  

The Act requires that Licensing Authorities publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ for their 

area to guide them when considering licence applications and controlling licensed premises.  

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 

section 5 of the Licensing Act and the revised Home Office Guidance issued under section 

182 of the Act. 

This Policy was approved by South Holland District Council as the Licensing Authority on ** 

** 2020 coming into effect on ** ** 2021 for a period of 5 years. During the 5 year period it 

will be kept under review and the Licensing Authority may make any revisions to it as it 

considers appropriate.  

South Holland District Council (hereinafter referred to as the Licensing Authority) is 

responsible for the licensing of all licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) 

these are as follows: 

 Retail sale of alcohol 

 Supply of alcohol to club members 

Page 87



 

5 
 

 Provision of entertainment to the public or club members or with a view to making 
profit, including raising money for charity, where the entertainment involves: 

o A theatrical performance 
o Film exhibition 
o Indoor sporting event 
o Boxing or Wrestling 
o Live Music 
o Recorded Music 
o A performance of dance 

 The provision of late night refreshment – Supply of hot food and drink from a 
premises between 23:00 and 05:00 

 
In carrying out its licensing function the Licensing Authority must promote the following four 
licensing objectives: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 

  In preparing this Policy the Council has consulted with and considered the views of a wide 

range of *responsible authorities, people and their representatives and organisations 

including: 

 Lincolnshire Police; 

 Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Service; 

 Director of Public Health – Lincolnshire; 

 persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders; 

 persons/bodies representative of local club premises certificate holders; 

 persons/bodies representative of local personal licence holders;  

 persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents and their 

representatives;  

 Planning Authority - South Holland District Council; 

 Health and Safety Authorities; 

 Environmental Health Services - South Holland District Council; 

 Lincolnshire Trading Standards (Weights and Measures); 

 Lincolnshire Children’s Safeguarding Partnership – Lincolnshire County Council; 

 Home Office (Alcohol Licensing Team); 

 Parish and Town Councils; 

 Local Member of Parliament; 

*See appendix 2 for contact details 

This policy is concerned with the regulation of licensable activities on licensed premises, 

qualifying clubs and at temporary events. It aims to ensure a consistent approach to 

licensing in South Holland and to assist officers and members in reaching a decision on a 

particular application or licence. 

In addition, the Policy seeks to provide clarity for applicants, ‘other persons’ (any individual, 

body or business entitled to make representation to an application under the Act) and 

Page 88



 

6 
 

Responsible Authorities’ to enable them to understand the objectives being promoted and 

the matters that will be considered when determining licences.  

 
The Licensing Authority is committed to working with licence holders by remaining flexible 

and supportive to businesses to enable them to thrive and survive. 

Conditions will relate to premises and other places being used for licensable activities in the 

surrounding area. In this regard the Licensing Authority will primarily focus on the direct 

impact, of any licensable activities taking place, on members of the public living, working or 

otherwise engaged in normal activity, regardless of their geographical proximity to the 

premises. 

If an application is lawfully made and no relevant representations are received then the 

Licensing Authority must grant a lawfully made application. Only if representations are made 

will the Licensing Authority discretion be engaged. 

The effectiveness of this policy will be kept under review throughout the five year period by 

way of regular contact with responsible authorities and representatives of licence holders 

such as “PubWatch”. 

 Advice and guidance on whether a licence is required for a premise or at an event can be 

obtained from the Licensing Team at South Holland District Council. Guidance is also made 

available to assist applicants and can be found on the South Holland District Council’s 

website www.sholland.gov.uk/licensing. However, this guidance does not form part of the 

policy and applicants are encouraged to seek independent advice should they require it. 

Applicants should be aware of the expectations of the Licensing Authority and the 

Responsible Authorities as to the steps that are appropriate in the promotion of the 

licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of their local area when describing the 

steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives.  

It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the delivery of the 

licensing objectives and should not therefore be seen as a universal solution for solving all 

problems within the community. The Licensing Authority will therefore continue to work in 

partnership with neighbouring authorities, the responsible authorities, local business and 

local people and their representatives and agencies such as the Safer Lincolnshire 

Partnership, to all work towards the promotion of the licensing objectives outlined in this 

document.  

Part 3 Integrating other guidance, policies and 

Legislation 

3.1 It is the Council’s mission to “develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent 

communities whilst protecting the most vulnerable’ and to ‘encourage the local economy to 

be vibrant with continued growth.   

In preparing this licensing policy the Licensing Authority has had regard to, and sought to 

integrate the licensing policy with other strategies, policies and codes of practice: 

 South Holland District Council Corporate Plan 

  Safer Lincolnshire Partnership 

Page 89

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/licensing


 

7 
 

 South Holland District Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy 

 Regulators’ Code of Compliance 

 Statutory Guidance – s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Home office) 

 There are a number of wider issues that may need to be given due consideration when 

dealing with applications. The Council through its Licensing Committee may therefore from 

time to time receive, and may act upon, relevant reports concerning crime and disorder and 

any other reports, strategies and initiatives that may be considered appropriate to 

promoting the four licensing objectives. 

Delegation of Function 

3.2 In determining a licensing application, the overriding principle will be that each application 

will be determined on its own merit, having regard to the need to promote the four licensing 

objectives and taking into account this Licensing Policy and the guidance issued under 

Section 182 by the Secretary of State.  

Nothing in this policy will undermine any person’s right to apply for a variety of permissions 

under the Act. 

Where it is necessary to depart from the guidance or this Policy the Licensing Authority will 

give clear and cogent reasons for doing so. Any decision taken by the Licensing Authority in 

regard to determination of licences, certificates and notifications should aim to promote the 

licensing objectives. 

The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Authority’s 

Licensing Committee, by a Sub-Committee or by one or more officers acting under delegated 

authority. The Licensing Committee will consist of between 10 and 15 elected members of 

the Council and will establish sub committees consisting of 3 members of the committee. 

The Council’s delegation of functions follow the Home Office Guidance issued under Section 

182 of the Licensing Act.  

Where no representations are made and in un-contentious applications to the Licensing 

Authority the application will be dealt with administratively, whereby delegated officers will 

grant the application, subject where required, to conditions consistent with the operating 

schedule.  

All such matters dealt with by officers will be reported for information to the Licensing 

Committee.   

Applications where representations have been made and an agreement has been reached 

between all relevant parties to amend the application (i.e. to add conditions) the Licensing 

Authority reserves the right to not hold a hearing and issue the licence as per the agreement 

(in such situations the application will be considered ‘uncontested’). This will only be done 

when the proposed amendments promote the licensing objectives and consideration will be 

given to the potential for any party to be disadvantaged.  

Applications where there are relevant representations will be dealt with by the Licensing 

Sub-committee, unless:  

 such representations are from ‘other persons’ and are considered to be irrelevant, 

frivolous or vexatious, or 

Page 90



 

8 
 

 *the Licensing Authority, the applicant and everyone who has made relevant 

representations agrees that a hearing is not necessary, or 

 the representations are in relation to a minor variation and the power to determine 

the application has been delegated to the officers of the Licensing Authority 

* the Licensing Authority reserves the right to disagree that a hearing is not necessary.  

If a Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee hearing is required under the Act in respect of an 

application, the hearing will be in public unless there are compelling reasons for it to be 

heard otherwise. When a hearing is held in public, the Licensing Committee/Sub-Committee 

can retire into private session to consider their decision.  

Every decision made by the Licensing Authority will be accompanied by clear reasons for 

reaching that decision. 

Decisions on licensing matters will be taken in accordance with an approved scheme of 
delegation. A table of delegations can be found at Appendix 1.  

Promotion of Equality - Equality Act 2010  

3.3  This policy recognises the Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public authorities to 

have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and 

victimisation; to advance equality of opportunity, and to foster good relations, between 

persons of different protected characteristics. South Holland District Council is committed to 

the principles of the Equality Act 2010. 

Further, licensees should make themselves familiar with the requirements of this Act for the 

access and provision of services for persons within the protected groups identified by the 

legislation. The Act makes it unlawful to discriminate against anyone because of:  

• age  

• being or becoming a transsexual person  

• being married or in a civil partnership  

• being pregnant or on maternity leave  

• disability  

• race including colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin  

• religion, belief or lack of religion/belief  

• sex  

• sexual orientation  

Further guidance is available at: www.gov.uk/guidance/equality-act-2010-

guidance#guidance-on-the-equality-act 

Immigration Act 2016 

3.4  Section 36 of and Schedule 4 to the Immigration Act 2016 made a number of amendments 

to the Licensing Act 2003 to introduce immigration safeguards in respect of licensing 

applications. These changes were brought about to prevent illegal working in premises 

licensed for the sale of alcohol or late night refreshment.  

The statutory prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective in the Licensing Act 2003 

includes the prevention of immigration crime and the prevention of illegal working in 

Page 91

http://www.gov.uk/guidance/equality-act-2010-guidance#guidance-on-the-equality-act
http://www.gov.uk/guidance/equality-act-2010-guidance#guidance-on-the-equality-act


 

9 
 

licensed premises. The Council will work with the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) as 

well as the police, in respect of these matters.  

The Licensing Authority will have regard to any guidance issued by the Home Office in 

relation to the immigration related provisions now contained in the Licensing Act 2003.  

Protection of Privacy and Data Protection 

3.5  In line with General Data Protection Regulations and Data Protection Act 2018, South 

Holland District Council is a Data Controller of the information provided as part of the 

licence application process. The Licensing Authority has a statutory duty to process and 

maintain licences and permissions and conduct enforcement activities in accordance with 

the Licensing Act 2003 as part of a legal obligation to meet the statutory requirements for 

the licensing of the sale of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night refreshment.  

We may share the following information with the third parties; details of the licensed 

premises, licence status, the names, addresses and company numbers of persons and 

companies named on a licence. This may be shared with services within the Council, for 

example, Planning Authority and Community Safety.  

We will share with external third party organisations including Government departments, 

Information Commissioners Office (for National Fraud Initiative), the Health and Safety 

Executive, Lincolnshire Police and Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Service to make further 

enquiries regarding your application under the Licensing Act 2003 or where required by law 

for the detection and prevention of crime.  

The personal information provided as part of the application for a premises licence, club 

premises certificate or personal licence will be held for a period of 6 years following the 

termination of the licence/permit.  

The personal information held for Temporary Event Notices will be held for a period of 2 

calendar years following the event.  

Details of all transactions are recorded permanently as an entry on the licensing register.  

The Council’s corporate privacy notice, which includes details of the authority’s Data 

Protection Officer and your information rights is available at: www.sholland.gov.uk/privacy. 

Planning 

3.6  The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be seen as a re-run 

of the planning application process and there should be a clear separation of the planning 

and licensing regimes to avoid duplication and inefficiency. However, this will not rule out 

valid representations by the local planning authority. 

The use of premises for the sale or provision of alcohol, regulated entertainment or late 

night refreshment is subject to planning control. Such use will require planning permission 

or must otherwise be lawful under planning legislation. Planning permission is generally 

required for the establishment of new premises or the change of use of premises. 

Applicants are strongly encouraged to consider making any necessary enquiries and 

applications for planning permission before, or at the same time, they make an application 

for a premises licence or a club premises certificate 

Page 92

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/privacy


 

10 
 

In line with the S182 Guidance the planning and licensing regimes involve consideration of 

different (albeit related) matters. Licensing committees are not bound by decisions made by 

a planning committee, and vice versa. 

Other Legislation 

3.7  When making licensing decisions, the Licensing Authority will comply with all relevant 
legislation and have regard to other legislation. Inclusive of but exhaustive to: 

 Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998  

 The European Convention on Human Rights, which is applied by the Human Rights 

Act 1998  

 The Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 

2000  

 Equality Act 2010  

 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

 Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 

 Environmental Protection Act 1990 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

 Building Regulations 

 Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 

 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 Private Security Industry Act 2001 

 Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 

 Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

 Health Act 2006 

 Gambling Act 2005 

 Business and Planning Act 2020 

In order to avoid duplication with existing legislation and other statutory and regulatory 

regimes, the Licensing Authority will as so far as is practicable, not attach conditions of 

licence unless they are considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

Conditions will generally be considered unnecessary if they are already adequately covered 

by other legislation. 

Part 4 Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 

4.1 Each of the four licensing objectives are of equal importance and they will be paramount 

considerations for the Licensing Authority at all times. The Council will carry out its functions 

under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives. These 

are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 

The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of the 

premises and the instruction, training and supervision of staff in the adoption of best 

Page 93



 

11 
 

practice to be amongst the most essential control measures for the achievement of the 

licensing objectives. For this reason it is recommended these elements are specifically 

considered and addressed within an applicant’s operating schedule. It is for the applicant to 

decide, what if any, measures to suggest in its operating schedule in order to address any 

potential concerns. Applicants are reminded measures proposed in the operating schedules 

will be converted into conditions on their licence. 

The  Safer Lincolnshire Partnership Code of Practice for South Lincolnshire Night Time 

Economy may be of some assistance in ensuring premises are well managed and well run. 

The Licensing Authority recommends that applicants carry out their own risk assessments in 

relation to the four licensing objectives in order to assist them in deciding whether any steps 

are required to be taken in order to meet those objectives. 

Although it is not a requirement under the Act, applicants are advised to submit any risk 

assessments undertaken to the responsible authorities in order that they can assess the 

suitability of the operating schedule.  

The Licensing Authority recommends early consultation with Responsible Authorities. 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

4.2  Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Licensing Authority must exercise its functions, 

having regard to the likely effect on crime and disorder in its area, and must do all it can to 

prevent crime and disorder. 

The Licensing Authority will seek to ensure that licence holders take measures to control the 

behaviour of persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises 

as they seek to enter and leave. Any conditions attached to the licence will not seek to 

manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct management of the 

licence holder, staff or agents. 

The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules, the 

steps they propose to take to detect, reduce, and deter crime and disorder. 

These steps will vary from premise to premise and according to the type of licensable 

activities that are to be undertaken. The need for and location of CCTV, the need for door 

supervision, and capacity remits to prevent overcrowding are some of the control measures 

that can be considered by applicants. Applicants should consider the location and type of 

their premises when considering any option. For example, there may be a greater need to 

provide door supervision in town centre public houses than at village premises. 

Applicants should seek advice from the Police on control measures under this licensing 

objective. It is recommended that applicants discuss the measures they intend to take 

with the Police prior to making the application to try and reduce representations. 

There are many steps an applicant may take to prevent crime and disorder. Examples of 

measures the Licensing Authority may expect applicants to consider and address in their 

operating schedule include: 

I. Participation in a scheme to reduce crime and disorder e.g. membership of 

P ubwatch 

Page 94



 

12 
 

II. Physical security features e.g. use of polycarbonate, toughened or plastic 

drinking glasses 

III. Procedure for risk assessment of alcohol promotions to ensure that they do not 

promote irresponsible drinking or potentially breach the mandatory condition 

on irresponsible drinks promotions 

IV. The use and numbers of SIA licensed door supervisors 

V. Amount of seating to be provided to reduce the risk of high volume vertical drinking 

VI. Training given to staff in crime prevention and drug awareness measures 

VII. Training given to staff to prevent the sale of alcohol to those who are under age or 

appearing to be drunk 

VIII. Adoption of the Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 policy 

IX. Measures agreed with the Police to reduce crime and disorder 

X. Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs, including the installation 

and use of drug safes 

XI. Search Procedures 

XII. Provision of CCTV in and around the premises 

XIII. Formulation of a dispersal policy 

XIV. Measures to prevent glasses and bottles being taken away from the licensed 

premises. 

Public Safety 

4.3  The public safety objective is concerned with the physical state of people using the 

premises.  

The Licensing Authority will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting public 

safety and will seek to ensure that licence holders take measures to protect the safety of 

both performers and persons attending licensable activities. The risk to public safety will 

vary according to the type of premises and the activities carried out. 

The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules the 

steps they propose to take to promote public safety. 

Where an applicant identifies an issue in regard to public safety which is not covered by 

existing legislation, the applicant should identify in their operating schedule the steps 

which will be taken to ensure public safety. Depending on the individual style and 

characteristics of the premises and/or events the following issues might be of relevance: 

I. suggested occupancy figures (including staff and performers) 

II. the use of equipment and effects 

III. levels of door staff 

IV. measures to prevent the supply and use of illegal drugs 

V. physical security features e.g. the use of toughened drinking glasses or 

plastic containers 

VI. safety training and emergency evacuation procedures 

VII. controls on the removal of glasses, bottles and other drinking containers 

from licensed premises where alcohol is consumed 

VIII. control measures in place, such as the provision of seating and tables, to 

reduce high volume vertical drinking 

IX. provision of CCTV 

Page 95



 

13 
 

X. Adequate and appropriate supply of first aid equipment and materials is 

available on the premises. 

XI. If necessary, at least one suitably trained first-aider shall be on duty when the 

public are present; and if more than one suitably trained first-aider that their 

respective duties are clearly defined. 

The occupancy capacity for premises, and events as appropriate, is a fundamental factor 

in the achievement of the four licensing objectives (except in respect of premises 

licensed for the consumption of food and/or alcohol off the premises). The Licensing 

Authority recommends the issue of occupancy capacity (including staff and performers) 

to be considered and addressed within the premises’ fire assessment. 

Applicants are advised to consult with the Environmental Health Team and the relevant 

Health and Safety Enforcing Authority who can offer advice as to the appropriate 

measures to be considered. On receipt of relevant representations, the Licensing 

Authority will have regard to the views of all of the Responsible Authorities.  

The design and layout of premises are important in determining capacity, as is the 

availability and size of exits within recommended travel distances. Other factors should 

also be considered when assessing the appropriate capacity for premises or events. 

These include but are not limited   to: 

I. The nature of the premises or event 

II. The nature of the licensable activities being provided 

III. The provision or removal of such items as temporary structures, such as a 

stage, or furniture 

IV. The number of staff available to supervise customers both ordinarily and in the 

event of an emergency 

V. The customer profile 

VI. Availability of suitable and sufficient sanitary accommodation 

VII. Nature and provision of facilities for ventilation 

The agreement to a capacity for premises or events should not be interpreted as a 

requirement in all cases to also provide permanent monitoring arrangements such as 

door staff, attendance clickers or maintenance of attendance records. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that the person in charge at the premises can often 

readily assess the capacity of the premises without resort to such measures. 

However, where the capacity is likely to be reached (such as on known busy evenings) 

and particularly where a special event or promotion is planned, the applicant is advised to 

detail the additional arrangements that will be put in place to ensure the capacity of the 

premises is not exceeded. 

Prevention of Public Nuisance 

4.4  Licensed premises have a significant potential to impact adversely upon communities 
through public nuisance arising as a result of their activities. The Licensing Authority’s 
aim is to maintain and protect the amenity of residents and other businesses from the 
potential negative impact of licensed premises, by promoting the need to prevent public 
nuisance, whilst at the same time recognising the valuable cultural, social and economic 
importance of such premises. 

Page 96



 

14 
 

The Licensing Authority intends to interpret ‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense and takes 
it to include such issues as noise, light, including artificial light, odour, dust, insects, 
litter and anti-social behaviour, where these matters impact on those living, working or 
otherwise engaged in normal activity in the area affected. 

The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules, the 
steps they propose to take to prevent public nuisance. These steps will vary from premises 
to premises and according to the type of licensable activities that are to be carried on. 

Applicants are recommended to consult with the Environmental Health Team for advice on 
measures that may need to be incorporated into the operating schedule. 

When addressing public nuisance the applicant should initially identify any   particular 
issues (having regard to their particular type and location of premises and/or activities) 
which are likely to adversely affect the amenity of the area and the promotion of the 
objective to prevent public nuisance. Such steps as are required to deal with these 
identified issues should be included within the applicants operating schedule. These 
issues may include: 

I. The customer profile 

II. Availability of suitable and sufficient sanitary accommodation 

III. The location of the premises and the proximity to residential and other noise 

sensitive premises 

IV. The hours of opening, particularly where this will include times between 23.00 

hours and 07.00 hours 

V. The nature of the activities to be provided, including whether those activities 

are of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be carried 

on inside or outside the premises; whilst consumption of alcohol is not a 

licensable activity, the Licensing Authority  will  expect consumption areas to 

be shown on the application and a description of the measures to be taken 

to prevent public nuisance 

VI. The design and layout of the premises and in particular the presence of noise 

limiting and/or monitoring features 

VII. The occupancy capacity of the premises 

VIII. Any ‘wind-down period’ between the end of licensable activities and the closure 

of the premises 

IX. Last admission times 

X. The availability of public transport 

XI. The availability of parking and access to such parking 

The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may 
need to take account of them in their operating schedule, depending upon the 
particular type of premises and the activities to be carried on: 

I. Effective and responsible management of the premises 

II. Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 
engaged, to prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. to ensure that 
customers leave quietly 

III. Control of operating hours for all or part of the premises (e.g. garden 

areas), including restrictions on the time of deliveries where necessary to 
control public nuisance 

IV. Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good Practice Guide on the 

Page 97



 

15 
 

Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by the Institute of 

Acoustics) 
V. Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 

limiting devices 

VI. Management of people, including staff and customers entering and 
leaving the premises 

VII. The effective management of vehicular traffic entering and leaving the 
site, including vehicle horns, loud music from vehicle radios etc 

VIII. Liaison with public transport providers 
IX. Care in the siting of external lighting including security lighting 
X. Management arrangements for the collection and proper disposal of litter 

resulting from premises, including that generated by customers 

XI. Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour emissions 
XII. Undertaking  noise impact assessments 

XIII. Regular monitoring of the perimeter by staff to ensure that noise emanating 

from the premises is not likely to cause public nuisance 
XIV. Provision of CCTV 
XV. The need for temporary traffic regulation orders 

XVI. Signage requiring customers to leave the premises in a quiet and 
orderly manner. 
 

The Licensing Authority recognises that it is necessary to balance the rights of local 
residents, businesses and others with those wishing to provide licensable activities and 
those who wish to use the facilities. 

If it necessary for the prevention of public nuisance where conditions do not adequately 
address the issues an application can be refused. 
 
The Protection of Children from Harm 

4.5  The Licensing Authority recognises the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children's Partnership 

(LSCP) as the Responsible Authority for the protection of children from harm.   

The protection of children from harm includes protection of children from moral, 

psychological and physical harm. 

The Licensing Authority must also consider the need to protect children from sexual 

exploitation when undertaking licensing functions. 

The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may be 

sought. These include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, takeaways, 

community halls or centres and schools.  

Except where prohibited by law, access by children to all types of premises, should be freely 
allowed and will not be limited in any way unless, there is good reason to restrict entry or 
exclude children completely, so as to protect them from harm. 

Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children and would likely lead to a 
refusal of permitting access to children under 18, would include premises: 

I. where entertainment or service of an adult or sexual nature are provided 
II. where there has been a conviction of a member of the current staff at the premises 

for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for under-age drinking 

Page 98



 

16 
 

III. with a known association (having been provided with evidence) with drug taking or 
dealing 

IV. where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for example, 
the simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines) 

V. where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or 
primary purpose of the services provided at the premises 

On receipt of applications and any relevant representations, the Licensing Authority will 
consider whether conditions are necessary. Each application will be considered on its own 
merits and if conditions are necessary these may include: 

I. restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 
II. limitations on the exclusion of the presence of children under certain ages when 

particular specified activities are taking place and to ensure such activities 
cannot be viewed by children; 

III. restrictions on the parts of premises to which children might be given access; 
IV. age restrictions (below 18); 
V. restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place; 

VI. requirements for accompanying adults (including for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be 
accompanied by an adult); 

VII. full exclusion of those people under 18 from the premises when any licensable 
activities are taking place. 

The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition that specifically requires access for 
children to be provided at any premises. Where no restriction or limitation is imposed the 
issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or club. 

In the case of premises which are used for film exhibition, conditions will be imposed 
restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with any certificate 
granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a certificate given to 
the film by the Licensing Authority itself. 

Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any licensed premise, for 
example, a children’s show or pantomime, then subject to receiving relevant representation, 
conditions may be imposed requiring the presence of an appropriate amount of adult 
supervision to ensure public safety and their protection from harm. 
The onus will be on the premises licence holder to ensure that staff members are suitable to 
carry out the supervision of children, which may include a criminal record disclosure from 
the Disclosure and Barring service. 

The Act makes it an offence for children under 16, who are not accompanied by an adult, to 
be present on the premises used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol for 
consumption on those premises under the terms of a premise licence, club premise 
certificate, or where that activity is carried on in accordance with a temporary event notice.  

In addition, it is an offence to permit the presence of children under 16, who are not 

accompanied by an adult, between midnight and 5am at other premises supplying alcohol 

for the consumption on premises holding a premise licence, club premises certificate or 

temporary event notice. 

Page 99



 

17 
 

The Licensing Authority will not knowingly support application which would permit these 

offences to occur and may impose conditions in specific cases to ensure the protection of 

children from harm. 

As well as being a criminal offence, the sale of alcohol to children and young people can lead 

to harm to them and can lead to public nuisance and crime and disorder. The Licensing 

Authority will therefore expect there to be adequate controls in place at licensed premises 

to prevent the sale of alcohol to children and young persons,  

Consideration will be given to the appropriate powers that should be used to address a 

problem where other agencies such as the police, fire authority, director of public health 

environmental protection and trading standards also have their own powers.  The Local 

Authority also commits to working in partnership with the Spalding Community Alcohol 

Partnership to reduce alcohol harm in local communities from drinking by young people 

under 25 with a particular emphasis on preventing underage drinking.  

The Licensing Authority recognises that Lincolnshire County Council, Trading Standards 

Service, has a statutory responsibility to regulate the sale of age restricted products 

including alcohol. The Trading Standards service, provides advice and guidance to the 

licensed trade on the controls and systems that may be adopted to help prevent such sales. 

The Licensing Authority also recognises that in liaison with the Police, the Trading Standards 

Service conducts covert test purchasing exercises in response to complaints and information 

recover to check compliance with the law. 

The licensing authority will also give considerable weight to representations about child 

protection matters. These representations may include, amongst other things, the use of 

health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to underage drinkers. 

Where licence holders wish to employ children they should ensure that the legislation 

regarding this matter is complied with and any necessary permits to work have been 

obtained from the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

In respect of premises licensed for the sale of alcohol, the Licensing Authority commends the 

Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic 

Drinks and compliance with the Retail Alert Bulletin. 

The sale of alcohol to children and young persons under the relevant age is a criminal 

offence, often resulting in harm to the children and young persons concerned and 

disturbance and nuisance to local residents and businesses. Applicants should detail 

adequate control measures in their operating schedule to prevent under age sales. 

Mandatory conditions require the adoption of a proof of age scheme to prevent sale to 

supply of alcohol to anyone under 18 years of age. The Licensing Authority commends a 

scheme such as the British Retail Consortium’s Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) the 

“Challenge 21” scheme, “Challenge 25” scheme or any locally or nationally approved 

scheme. Al staff engaged in the sale or supply of alcohol should be fully trained in the 

application of the policy adopted. 

If an applicant intends to provide any entertainment of an adult nature then the Licensing 

Authority will expect a detailed description of those activated and the measures the 

applicants intends to take to protect children from harm. Please see Part 8 on Sexual 

Entertainment Venues. 

Page 100



 

18 
 

For the avoidance of doubt, the lists of examples given of measures applicants may take to 

promote the licensing objectives are not mandatory and will not be applied in all cases. 

These examples are given to assist applicants in deciding the measures they may take. 

Part 5 General Licensing Principles  

Minor Variations 

5.1  It is possible to make small changes to premises licences or club premises certificates 
through the minor variation process. The test for whether a proposed variation is ‘minor’ is 
whether it could impact adversely on any of the four licensing objectives. South Holland 
District Council has issued guidance on how to apply for a minor variation which can be 
accessed on the Council’s website. 

The Licensing Authority will not accept a minor variation to extend licensing hours for the 
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on or off of the premises between the hours of 
23.00 and 07.00 or to increase the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be 
sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises. A full variation will be required in 
these cases.  

Applicants are strongly advised to contact the appropriate Responsible Authorities before 
formally submitting their application in order to avoid unnecessary expense.  Applications 
for minor variations may be subject to consultations with the appropriate responsible 
authorities and will be refused if any Responsible Authority indicates that they would make a 
relevant representation. 

In order to avoid unnecessary hearings applicants are strong advised to prepare risk 
assessments and from these formulate any steps they consider necessary to promote the 
licensing objectives and then to consult with the responsible authorities as defined within 
the Act before submitting their applications. 

Failure to do so may lead to representations which can only be determined by the Licensing 
Committee.  

Account will be taken of the need to encourage and promote all types of entertainment 
including live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the community as 
a whole and that can attract visitors to the district. If representations are made concerning 
the potential for limited disturbance arising out of these activities in a particular 
neighbourhood, the Licensing Authority’s consideration will be balanced against the wider 
benefits to the community in its capacity as Licensing Authority. It will encourage the 
licensing of public open spaces for the greater cultural good of the community including the 
purposes of circus entertainment and street performers. 

Hours  

5.2  The Act gives the Licensing Authority the power to make decisions regarding licensed 

opening hours based on local knowledge and in consultation with other Responsible 

Authorities. 

The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed and artificially early closing times in certain 

areas can lead to peaks of disorder and disturbance on the street when large numbers 

of people leave licensed premises at the same time. Longer licensing hours regarding 

Page 101



 

19 
 

the sale of alcohol may therefore be considered as an important factor in reducing 

friction at late night food outlets, taxi ranks and other sources of transport. 

As far as the Licensing Authority’s overall approach to licensing hours is concerned it is 

not intended that any form of zoning will be introduced. Experience in other areas 

shows that this can lead to the significant movement of people across boundaries in 

search of premises opening later, which puts greater pressure on town centres than is 

necessary and can lead to increased disorder. 

As a general rule shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be permitted to sell 

alcohol for consumption off the premises during the normal hours they intend to open 

for shopping purposes, unless there are good reasons, based on the licensing objectives, 

for restricting these hours. However, in the case of individual shops that are known to 

be, or are in an area which is known to be a focus of disorder and disturbance then, 

subject to receiving valid, relevant representation, alimentation licensing hours may be 

appropriate. However, each application will be considered on its own merits. 

The Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the individual 

merits of each application. When issuing a licence or certificate, stricter conditions with 

regard to noise control and/or limitations to opening hours may be imposed in the case 

of premises which are situated in largely residential or sensitive areas when 

representations have been received. 

Under the Act there are no permitted hours for the sale of alcohol. Applicants are able 

to suggest in their operating schedule the hours they wish to open. The Licensing 

Authority recommends applicants intending to apply for extended hours to cater for 

non-specified dates, such as international sporting events, and anticipate bank holidays 

and to incorporate appropriate opening hours for these occasions in their operating 

schedules. For example, a different set of operating conditions may apply during these 

extended hours. 

Additional occasions for which extensions may be required may be covered by a 

Temporary Event Notice. 

Conditions 

5.3  The Licensing Authority cannot impose conditions of its own volition. Conditions will only be 
attached in the following circumstances: 

 Mandatory conditions under the Licensing Act 2003 or introduced by regulation 
under the Act which will have effect in all circumstances regardless of if they appear 
on the Licence 

 If they are consistent with the applicant’s operating schedule, or agreed/offered by 
the applicant during the application process 

 When considered appropriate, reasonable and proportionate after relevant 
representations have been received and not withdrawn 

The Licensing Authority does not propose to implement standard conditions on licences.  

It may attach conditions as appropriate given the circumstances of each individual case. 

These conditions will relate to the premises and other places being used for licensable 

activities in the surrounding area. In this regard the Licensing Authority will primarily focus 

on the direct impact, of any licensable activities taking place, on members of the public 

Page 102



 

20 
 

living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity, regardless of their geographical 

proximity to the premises. 

The Licensing Authority recognises the commitment required to avoid attaching conditions 

that duplicate other regulatory regimes as far as possible. 

Where Responsible Authorities and other persons do not raise any representations 

about an application to the Licensing Authority, it is the duty of the Licensing Authority 

to grant the licence or certificate subject only to the conditions that are consistent with 

the operating schedule or club operating schedule and any mandatory conditions 

prescribed in the Act.  

When considering conditions, the Licensing Authority will look to the relevant 

responsible authorities to assist and advise on the appropriate measures to be taken. 

Where an applicant considers that representations are likely or probable, it is 

recommended that the applicant discuss the proposal with the licensing authority and 

those from whom they think representations are likely to be made prior to submitting 

their application. 

The Licensing Authority is aware of the need to avoid measures which deter live music, 

dancing and theatre by imposing indirect costs of a disproportionate nature and will 

take account of this when imposing conditions. 

Risk Assessments 

5.4  This policy advises applicants to complete risk assessments of their business in order to 
understand what steps are required to complete the operating schedule in line with 
promoting the licensing objectives. The Licensing Authority cannot insist on a risk 
assessment and should an applicant decide not to provide a risk assessment he must 
consider the likelihood of representations and therefore a hearing. 

It is for the applicant to decide what is appropriate in each case.  

Representations 

5.5  The Licensing Act 2003 provides a general presumption of grant of applications, subject to 

any representations. 

Depending on the type of application representations may be made by a ‘Responsible 

Authority’ or ‘other people’, as defined by the Licensing Act 2003. Guidance to make a 

‘relevant representation’ has been made available on the South Holland District Council 

website or by contacting the Licensing Team. 

www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5597/Premises-Licence#Representations 

Section 103 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amended the Act by 

making the Licensing Authority a ‘Responsible Authority’. This enables the authority to make 

representations about an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate or to 

apply for a review of a premises licence or a club premises certificate. 

In cases where the authority is acting in its capacity as a Responsible Authority, it has 

established a clear separation of responsibilities within the Authority’s Licensing Team in 

order to ensure procedural fairness and to avoid potential conflict of interest. 

Page 103

https://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5597/Premises-Licence#Representations
https://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5597/Premises-Licence#Representations


 

21 
 

Relevant representations are: 

 About the likely effect of the premises licence on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives; 

 Which have not been withdrawn and are not, in the opinion of the Licensing 

Authority, frivolous or vexatious. 

Members of the public who wish to submit a representation in regards to a premises licence 

or club premises certificate should be aware their personal details will be made available to 

the applicant(s).  

If this is an issue they may consider contacting a local representative, such as a parish or 

town councillor, or any other locally recognised body such as a resident’s association about 

submitting the representation on their behalf. Where the authority considers that the 

person has a genuine and well-founded fear of intimidation and may be deterred from 

making a representation, the authority may consider alternative approaches.  

The Licensing Authority will not accept anonymous representations. Full details of all 

representations must be made available to the applicant including names and addresses.  

In addition the Licensing Authority cannot accept petitions and will treat any petitions 

received as one representation from the lead petitioner (or person who submits the 

petition). We will correspond only with that person and we will invite only that person to the 

hearing. Other signatories will not be treated as individual representations and will not be 

invited to attend the hearing. 

Whilst representations regarding previous history may be valid, appropriate weight will be 

given to the length of time elapsed between the events referred to and the application date. 

The Licensing Authority will not consider the issue of ‘need’ or commercial demand when 

considering applications for another licensed premises within any given area. This is not a 

matter for the Licensing Authority in discharging its functions and it will remain a matter for 

the Planning Committee and the demands of the market place to decide. 

Where no representations are made the Licensing Authority will grant a licence subject to 

conditions consistent with the operating schedule. 

Large Scale Events of More than 500 people 

5.6  Organisers of major festivals and carnivals should approach the Licensing Authority at 

the earliest opportunity and consult the Lincolnshire Event Safety Advisory Group (LESAG) 

to discuss arrangements for the licensing of those activities falling under the Act. 

In respect of some events, the organisers may seek a single premises licence to cover a 

wide range of activities at varied locations within the premises. Anyone wishing to hold 

such an event should notify the Licensing Authority not less than six months before the 

event is due to happen. 

This will allow time for the preparation of a substantial operating schedule, about which the 

Licensing Authority will offer advice and assistance. If necessary, the Licensing Authority will 

act as a co-ordinating body for preliminary input from the responsible authorities prior to 

formal notification about the event. 

Page 104



 

22 
 

The Licensing Authority would advise applicants to consult with those Authorities 

concerned with public safety and, in appropriate cases, be required to formulate a 

safety plan with Lincolnshire Event Safety Advisory Group (LESAG). LESAG is not a 

Responsible Authority but is made up from representatives from bodies concerned with 

public safety; some of which are responsible authorities. 

Applicants are advised that the planning and consultation with LESAG should commence 

at an early stage on particularly large events, promoters/organisers should commence 

consultation at least a year in advance of the event. 

It is also advisable for applicants to read the guidance for large scale events called HSG195, 

The Event Safety Guide (for health, safety and welfare at music and similar events) known as 

the purple guide www.thepurpleguide.co.uk. 

Excessive Consumption of Alcohol 

5.7  The council is acutely aware of the link between the supply of alcohol that is subject to 

certain promotions and the possibility of resultant incidents of alcohol related crime and 

disorder and implications for public safety, public nuisance and the risk of harm to children.  

The council also recognises the impact that excessive or binge drinking can have on public 

health and that positive action on promoting the licensing objectives is equally likely to have 

an indirect impact on public health.  

The British Beer and Pub Association states that a promotion is irresponsible where it 

encourages or incites individuals to drink to excess, behave in an anti-social manner or fuels 

drunkenness. The council as the Licensing Authority will use the powers contained within 

the Licensing Act to ensure operators’ promotional activities do not undermine the licensing 

objectives.  

In April 2010 new mandatory conditions came into effect which:  

 Ban irresponsible promotions;  

 Ban the dispensing of alcohol directly into the mouth; and  

 Ensure that customers have access to free tap water so that they can space out their 

drinks and not get intoxicated too quickly.  

The legislation makes it clear that an irresponsible promotion is one that is “carried on for 

the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in 

a manner which carried a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, 

prejudice to public safety, public nuisance or harm to children”.  

As a consequence, any on-trade premises that participates in irresponsible drinks 

promotions will be breaching licence conditions and may be subject to a review of their 

licence.  

If there are issues that undermine the licensing objectives at any premises and it is 

considered that an irresponsible drinks promotion was a causative factor, this will be 

stressed at any review hearing.  

The Licensing Authority will work with Health Professionals in their role as a Responsible 

Authority where it is considered that an application or licensed premises is operating in such 

Page 105

https://www.thepurpleguide.co.uk/


 

23 
 

a way that the licensing objectives are not being promoted and comments provided by that 

Responsible Authority may assist Committee make an appropriate decision. 

Part 6 Applications 

6.1 Applications must be made to the Licensing Authority in the form prescribed by the 

regulations. Guidance and application forms are available to applicants setting out the 

details of the process and can be found on the licensing pages of the South Holland District 

Council website: www.sholland.gov.uk\licensing or by contacting the Licensing Team. 

Applications, notices or relevant representations shall be treated as having been “given” to 

the Authority in accordance with the principles of “deemed service” as set out in the Civil 

Procedure Rules.  

In preparing this policy the Licensing Authority has sought to avoid unnecessary duplication 

of existing legislation and regulatory regimes. Nothing in this policy is intended to revoke or 

replace the need for applicants to act in accordance with legal requirements. All applicants 

are advised to seek proper advice to ensure the activities they propose are within the 

boundaries set by existing legislation and regulations.  

The council offers pre-application advice for certain licence application types. For more 

information on the pre-application advice, please visit the website. 

Premise Licence and Club Premises Certificate 

6.2  A premise licence and club premise certificate authorises the sale or supply of alcohol, 
regulated entertainment and late night refreshment (sale of hot food and drink after 11pm). 
The Act recognises the difference between a commercially operated premise and a premise 
to which public access is restricted. For this reason, qualifying clubs can apply for a Club 
Premises Certificate. A Designated Premises Supervisor and Personal Licence Holders are not 
required where a Club Premises Certificate is in force. 

Applicants must make themselves aware of the relevant sections of this policy and make 
their application in accordance with the Act and any regulations made under it, including 
details of the hours of operation, any hours for licensable activity and an operating schedule 
and conditions. Failure to meet this requirement may result in the application being 
returned.  

Whatever the nature of the applicant and activity proposed, the overriding principle is that 
the Licensing Authority will consider each application on its own individual merits and all 
applications with be determined having regard to: 

 Statement of Licensing Policy 2021 

 Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and subordinate legislation 

 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State (the guidance) 

 Any relevant representations received, providing they are not determined to 
frivolous or vexatious as defined in the Act and associated guidance 

Applicants will be required to submit with their application for a premises licence or club 
premises certificate, or a variation to an existing premises licence or club premises 
certificate and operating schedule detailing: 

I. on the licensable activities to be conducted on the premises 

Page 106

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/licensing


 

24 
 

II. the times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable activities are 
to take place 

III. any other times when the premises are to be open to the public or to members 
of a club 

IV. if the licence is required only a for a limited period 
V. where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, the name and 

address of the individual to be specified as the designated premises supervisor 
and his or her personal licence number 

VI. where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, whether the alcohol 
will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises or both 

VII. the steps which the applicant proposes to take to promote the licensing 
objectives, and 

VIII. all relevant documentation necessary to satisfy the four licensing objectives 

If an applicant for a new or a variation to a premises licence, or club premises certificate or 
an application for a provisional statement has been made lawfully and there have been no 
representations from responsible authorities or other person, the Licensing Authority will 
grant the application subject only to conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule and mandatory conditions. 

Regulated Entertainment 

6.3  Since the introduction of the Act, the Government has de-regulated various types of 

regulated entertainment. Applicants are advised to consult the government’s website for 

further information:  

www.gov.uk/guidance/entertainment-licensing-changes-under-the-live-music-act 

Regulated entertainment covers the provision of entertainment where the entertainment 

takes place in the presence of an audience and is provided, at least partly, to entertain that 

audience. The descriptions of entertainment in the Licensing Act are: 

 the performance of a play; 

 an exhibition of a film; 

 an indoor sporting event; 

 boxing or wrestling entertainment;  

 a performance of live music; 

 any playing of recorded music; 

 a performance of dance; and 

 entertainment of a similar description to a performance of live music, any playing of 

recorded music or a performance of dance. 

To be licensable, one or more of these activities needs to be provided for the purpose of 

entertaining an audience, has to be held on premises made available for the purpose of 

enabling that activity and must also either take place in the presence of a public audience, or 

where that activity takes place in private, be the subject of a charge made with a view to 

profit. 

Operating Schedule 

Page 107

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/entertainment-licensing-changes-under-the-live-music-act


 

25 
 

6.4  The Licensing Act 2003 requires, and the Licensing Authority expects, applicants to complete 

an operating schedule and have regard to this Statement of Licensing Policy along with the 

steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

The operating schedule is a key document and, if prepared comprehensively, will form the 

basis on which premises can be licensed without the need for additional extensive 

conditions.  

The Licensing Authority expects the operating schedule to demonstrate and ensure that 

the four licensing objectives are promoted. It should contain enough information for 

responsible authorities and other persons to be satisfied that the licensing objectives 

will be promoted. 

Applicants should pro-actively make their own enquiries and demonstrate how they 

have considered and applied the promotion of the four licensing objectives. The detail 

and complexity required will depend on the nature of the premises. 

Any application and/or operating schedule that is not completed in accordance with the 

Act and the regulations may be returned to the applicant. The Licensing Authority has 

produced guidance which can be found at:  

www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5597/Premises-Licence 
 
Designated Premises Supervisor 

6.5  An applicant for a Premises Licence for the sale and supply of alcohol must nominate a 

Designated Premises Supervisor. This person must also be in possession of a Personal 

Licence to be able to supply or sell alcohol. They will normally have day to day control of the 

premises. 

Designated Premises Supervisor is not required to be present at all times. The sale and 

supply of alcohol may be made by another personal licence holder. 

If a Designated Premises Supervisor is not specified on the licence no sale or supply of 

alcohol from the premises may be undertaken. 

Staff Training  

6.6  Operators of licensed premises are reminded that it is incumbent on them to provide 

appropriate training for their staff to endure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

The Licensing Authority recommends that all people employed on licensed premises who are 

engaged in the sale and supply of alcohol be encourage to attend training programmes to 

raise awareness of their responsibility and particularly of the offences contained within the 

Act.  

Personal Licences 

6.7  Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who holds a Personal Licence. 

Applicants for a personal licence are expected to make their application in accordance 

with the Act and any regulations made under it. Failure to meet this requirement may 

result in the application being returned.  

Page 108

https://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/5597/Premises-Licence


 

26 
 

Applicants with unspent criminal convictions for relevant offences set out in the Licensing 

Act are strongly encouraged to first discuss their intention to apply for a Licence with the 

Police and Licensing Authority before making an application. 

The Licensing Authority recognises it has no discretion regarding the granting personal 

licences where: 

I. Where the applicant is 18 or over 
II. Possesses a licensing qualification 

III. Has not had a licence forfeited in the last five years and 
IV. Has not been convicted of a relevant offence 

There is no longer a requirement to renew a Personal Licence and the Licence is portable, 

although changes of name and home address or updates to photos must be notified to the 

issuing Licensing Authority for a prescribed fee. 

Temporary Event Notice (TEN’s) 

6.8  The Act sets out the legal requirements relating to TEN’s. A TEN is a notification given by an 

individual to the Licensing Authority where it is proposed to use a premises for one or more 

licensable activities during a period not exceeding 168 hours. They can be used to authorise 

relatively small-scale ad hoc events held in or on any premises involving no more than 499 

people at any one time.  

There are two types of TEN; a standard TEN and a late TEN. These have different notice 

periods.  

In respect of a standard TEN organisers of temporary events are required to give Notice to 

the Licensing Authority no later than 10 clear working days before the day on which the 

event period begins. The 10-day period does not include the day the Temporary Event Notice 

was received by the Licensing Authority, the day of the event itself, Saturdays and Sundays or 

Bank Holidays.  

 A Notice for a late TEN must be given between 5 and 9 clear working days before the event.  

Please note there are arrangements for electronic submissions. Guidance can be found on 

the website. 

Organisers are encouraged to submit their notifications to the Licensing Authority, Police 

and Environmental Health as soon as is reasonably practical and at the earliest possible 

notice in order for the Police and Environmental Health to consider whether or not there are 

any concerns and where there are concerns, to enable all parties to take the necessary steps 

to resolve them.  

Where insufficient notice is given (for a standard or late TEN), the notice WILL NOT be 

authorised and the event will be illegal. Provision of licensable activities except in 

accordance with the Licensing Act is an offence. 

For events that may attract larger numbers of people or may have an impact on traffic or 

road management, earlier contact with responsible authorities, the Highway Authority and 

where necessary by referral to the Council’s multi agency group, the Lincolnshire Event 

Safety Advisory Group, is advisable. This includes council departments and partners who 

Page 109



 

27 
 

have an interest in, or legislative role relevant to, such events, together with representatives 

of the emergency services. 

The Health and safety Executive provide specialist guidance on event safety through their 

website at www.hse.gov.uk. 

It is strongly recommended that advice on fire safety be sought from Lincolnshire Fire and 

Rescue. 

Event organisers are reminded of powers to close down events without notice, on the 

grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder, or public nuisance. The Licensing Authority 

therefore expects organisers to be aware of their responsibilities under the licensing laws. 

Part 7 Cumulative Impact 

7.1 A cumulative impact assessment (CIA) may be published by a Licensing Authority to help it to 
limit the number or types of licence applications granted in areas where there is evidence to 
show that the number or density of licensed premises in the area is having a cumulative 
impact and leading to problems which are undermining the licensing objectives. CIAs relate 
to applications for new premises licences and club premises certificates and applications to 
vary existing premises licences and club premises certificates in a specified area.  

The cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a 

matter which the Licensing Authority can take into account. This should not, however, be 

confused with ‘need’ which relates more to the commercial demand for a particular type of 

premises, for example a pub, restaurant, hotel or premises licence for off sales only. The 

issue of ‘need’ is therefore a matter for planning consideration or for the market to decide 

and does not form part of this licensing policy statement. 

The Licensing Authority may receive representations from either a Responsible Authority or 

other person that the cumulative impact of new licences is leading to an area becoming 

saturated with premises of a certain type, making it a focal point for large groups of people 

to gather, and thereby creating exceptional problems of disorder and nuisance over and 

above the impact from the individual premises themselves. In such cases the issue of 

cumulative impact can be taken into account when considering the individual merits of any 

application. 

The Licensing Authority will not operate a quota of any kind which would pre-determine any 

application, nor will it seek to impose general limitations on trading hours in particular areas. 

Instead, regard will be given to the individual characteristics of the premises concerned 

within a given area. It is recognised that pubs, nightclubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, and 

other clubs all sell alcohol, serve food and provide entertainment but with contrasting styles 

and characteristics. Proper regard will be had to those differences and the impact they are 

likely to have on the local community. 

The decision to include a special policy relating to cumulative impact, within this policy, will 

be evidentially based. The steps that will be followed in considering whether to include such 

a special policy are: 

I. identification of concern about crime and disorder or public nuisance 

II. consideration of whether it can be demonstrated that crime and disorder 

and nuisance are arising and are caused by customers of licensed premises, 

Page 110

http://www.hse.gov.uk/


 

28 
 

and if so identifying the area from which problems are arising and the 

boundaries of that area; or that the risk factors are such that the area is 

reaching a point where cumulative impact is imminent 

III. consultation with those specified by section 5(3) of the 2003 Act as part of the 

general consultation required in respect of the whole statement of licensing 

policy 

IV. subject to that consultation, inclusion of a special policy about future premises 

licence or club premises certificate applications from that area within the terms 

of the Guidance issued by the S e c r e ta r y o f State pursuant to s.182 of the Act.  

V. publication of the special policy as part of this policy. 

There are a number of other mechanisms for addressing issues of unruly behaviour 
which occurs away from licensed premises. These include: 

I. Planning controls 

II. positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 

partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 

departments of the local authority 

III. the provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, 

provision of public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and litter 

patrols 

IV. police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices 

V. prosecution for the offence of selling alcohol to a person who is drunk (or 

allowing such a sale) 
VI. closure powers for licensed premises or temporary events 

VII. the power of responsible authorities or local residents or businesses to seek a 

review of the licence or certificate in question. 

VIII. powers for the Council to designate parts of the local authority area as places 

where alcohol may not be consumed publicly. Spalding Town Centre Public 

Space Protection Order (‘the Order’) came into effect on 21st December 2016 for 

a period of three years.  This was renewed for a further 3 years in 2019. 

IX. Community Protection Notices 
X. Raising a contribution to policing the late night economy through the Late Night 

Levy 
XI. Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Orders  

The Licensing Authority may address a number of these issues through the Crime 

Reduction Partnership and County Licensing Group in line with the strategic objectives 

for crime and disorder within the District. 

If a CIA is published the Licensing Authority must, within three years, consider whether it 

remains of the opinion set out in the assessment. In order to decide whether it remains of 

this opinion it must again consult the persons listed in section 5(3).  

Any CIA published by a Licensing Authority must be summarised in its statement of licensing 

policy. Under section 5(6D) a Licensing Authority must also have regard to any CIA it has 

published when determining or revising its statement of licensing policy. 

This Authority has not published a CIA at the time of writing this policy.  

Page 111



 

29 
 

Part 8 Sexual Entertainment Venues 

In relation to regulated entertainment of a sexual nature, the Council has resolved to adopt 

schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the 

Police and Crime Act 2009 regarding sexual entertainment venues. The Council’s own Sexual 

Entertainment Venue Policy will apply. 

Part 9 Enforcement, Reviews and Appeals 

 Enforcement 

9.1  The Licensing Act 2003 contains measures to ensure that the Licensing Authority and 
responsible authorities are able to deal with premises that wilfully and persistently 
undermine the licensing objectives. 

The Licensing Authority is committed to encouraging a licensed thriving economy but will 
not tolerate those premise whose activities infringe the quality of life for local residents 
and businesses. 

The Licensing Authority will enforce alongside other enforcement authorities by targeting 
agreed problem and high risk premises, whilst providing a lighter touch, through advice 
and educations in respect of low risk premises or those that are well run.  

All enforcement action taken in accordance with the provisions in the Licensing Act 2003 
will be undertaken having regard to South Holland District Council’s enforcement policies, 
the Secretary of State’s guidance, this policy and the Regulators Code which is available at:  

 www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code 

The exercise of all licensing functions under the Act that are the responsibility of the 
Licensing Authority must be undertaken with a view to promoting the four licensing 
objectives. 

Suspension of Licences and Certificates for non-payment of annual fees  

9.2  As a result of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority 

must suspend premises licences and club premises certificates if the holder of the licence 

fails to pay, when due and subject to a grace period of 21 days, the annual fee. The annual 

fee becomes due on the anniversary of the grant of the licence or certificate. 

Suspension will be avoided if payment has not been made due to an administrative error, or 

a disputed liability for the fee of which notification has been received before or at the time 

the annual fee becomes due. 

Licences which are suspended shall cease to have effect during the suspension period. 

Responsible Authorities, including the Police, will be informed of any suspensions. Any non-

compliance with a suspension notice may result in enforcement action and the revocation of 

the licence. 

Where more than one payment year has been missed, the outstanding fee in relation to 

each year will be required to reinstate the licence.  

The licence will only be reinstated when the outstanding fee has been paid. 

Page 112

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code


 

30 
 

The Licensing Authority urges licence holders to consider surrendering licences in cases 

where the licence is no longer active. This will avoid the accrual of annual fees. 

Review of Licences 

9.3  The Licensing Authority recognises that the ability of the police, other responsible 
authorities and other people to apply for a review of a premises licence, is an incentive to 
effective self- regulation.  It will however, be mindful of the need to prevent the review 
process being used as an opportunity by responsible authorities and other persons to re-run 
the earlier representation without due cause. 

The Licensing Authority itself can also initiate the review process. 

Where any agency provides evidence of the keeping of smuggled goods, such as 
counterfeit alcohol or tobacco, or the employment of persons who do not possess the right 
to work in the UK, the relevant agency may request a review of the premises licence. 

The Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 amended parts of the Act and now expands police 
and council powers to deal with problem premises in a more expedient manner. 

On receipt of a relevant request to carry out a review the Licensing Authority has a range of 
options available to it under the Act. These include:  

I. To modify the conditions of the licence including imposing new conditions, altering 
existing conditions or removing conditions (permanently or temporarily)  

II. To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence (permanently or 
temporarily)  

III. To remove the Designated Premises Supervisor  
IV. To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months  
V. To revoke the licence  

The council will seek to establish the cause or causes of the concern and any action will be 
proportionate to the problems involved.  

The Licensing Authority has published guidance on the review process which is available 
from South Holland District Council’s website.   

www.sholland.gov.uk/media/5108/Guide-to-Applicants-LA-
2003/pdf/Guidance_to_applicants_-_July_2015.pdf?m=637154677001070000 

Closure Orders 

9.4  Where a Magistrates Court makes a Closure Order under part 8 of the Licensing Act 2003 (on 
grounds of disorder) the council must carry out a review of the licence.  

Where a Magistrates Court makes a Closure Order under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 (on grounds of the use, supply or production of Class A drugs 
associated with disorder or serious nuisance) the police will usually ask the council to carry 
out a review of the licence.  

Where a closure order has been made under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014 (on grounds of noise) the council’s Environmental Health section will normally 
request a review of the licence.  

Appeals 

Page 113

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/media/5108/Guide-to-Applicants-LA-2003/pdf/Guidance_to_applicants_-_July_2015.pdf?m=637154677001070000
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/media/5108/Guide-to-Applicants-LA-2003/pdf/Guidance_to_applicants_-_July_2015.pdf?m=637154677001070000


 

31 
 

9.5  Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the council has a right of appeal. This is set out in 

schedule 5 of the Act.  

The council will inform the appropriate parties of their right of appeal in accordance with the 

Act, when confirming a decision of the licensing subcommittee.  

Aggrieved parties should lodge any appeal with the Magistrates' Court within 21 days of the 

notification of the decision. 

Part 10 Further Information  

 Further information can be find on the following links: 

 South Holland District Council website: www.sholland.gov.uk 

 Lincolnshire Police: www.lincs.police.uk 

 Home Office Website:  www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing  

 Licensing Act 2003: www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents 

 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011: 

www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/part/2/enacted 

 Guidance issued under s.182 of the Act: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac

hment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Lice

nsing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf 

 Information Commissioners Office: ico.org.uk 

Or by contacting: 

 The Licensing Team 
South Holland District Council 
Priory Road 
Spalding 
Lincolnshire 
PE11 2XE 

 Tel: 01775 761161 

 Email: Licensing@sholland.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/
http://www.lincs.police.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/part/2/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://ico.org.uk/
mailto:Licensing@sholland.gov.uk


 

32 
 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Delegation of Functions 

Matter to be dealt with 
Full 

Committee 
Sub-Committee Officers 

Application for personal licence  If a police objection 
made 

If no police objection 
made 

Application for personal licence with 
unspent convictions 

 All cases  

Application for premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application for provisional statement  If a relevant 
representation made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application to vary premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation made 

If no relevant 
representation made 

Application for minor variation of premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

  All cases 

Application to vary designated premises 
supervisor 

 If a police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Request to be removed as designated 
premises supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of premises licence  If a police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Applications for interim authorities  If a police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Application to review premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a complaint is 
irrelevant frivolous vexatious etc. 

  All cases 

Decision to object when local authority is a 
consultee and not the relevant authority 
considering the application 

 All cases  

Determination of an objection to a 
temporary event notice 

 All cases  Addition of 
conditions consistent 
with existing Licence 

Determination of application to vary 
premises licence for community premises 
to include alternative licence condition 

 If a police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Decision whether to consult other 
responsible authorities on minor variation 
application 

  All cases 

Suspension of premises licence/club 
premises certificate for non-payment of 
annual fee 

  All cases 

Review of Statement of Licensing Policy All cases (Full 
Council) 

  

Page 115



 

33 
 

Appendix 2 – Responsible Authorities 

Police Licensing (Alcohol) 
Lincolnshire Police  
Myle Cross Centre 
Macaulay Drive 
Lincoln 
LN2 4EL 

01522 558437 
countylicensinggroup@lincs.pnn.police.uk 

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Fire Station 
Harlaxton Road  
Grantham 
NG31 7SG  

01476 565441  
fire.safety@lincoln.fire-uk.org 

Planning Authority 

Planning Services 
South Holland District Council  
Priory Road 
Spalding 
Lincolnshire 
PE11 2XE 
01775 761161 
planning@sholland.gov.uk 

Environmental Health 

Public Protection Team 
South Holland District Council 
Priory Road 
Spalding 
Lincolnshire 
PE11 2XE 
01775 761161 
pollution@sholland.gov.uk 

Health and Safety 

Health and Safety Team 
Priory Road 
Spalding 
Lincolnshire 
PE11 2XE 
01775 761161 
foodhs@sholland.gov.uk 
Health & Safety Executive (HSE) if the HSE are 
the relevant Responsible Authority in respect of 
the particular premise: www.hse.gov.uk 

Trading Standards 

Trading Standards Service  
Lincolnshire County Council  
Myle Cross Centre  
Macaulay Drive  
St Giles  
Lincoln 
LN2 4EL  
01522 782341 
tradingstandards@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children’s Board 

Lincolnshire County Council  
Block B, Orchard HouseB 
Orchard Street 
Lincoln 
LN1 1BA  
01522 554516 
 Stacey.Waller@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

Home Office 

Alcohol Licensing Team  
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement 
Section)  
Lunar House  
40 Wellesley Road  
Croydon 
CR9 2BY  
alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 

Public Health Authority 
Shirlene Hodgins 
Public Health Directorate  
Lincolnshire County Council  
Room 3.31, 3rd Floor 
Orchard House 
Orchard Street 
Lincoln 
LN1 1BA  
Publichealthlicensing@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 116

mailto:countylicensinggroup@lincs.pnn.police.uk
mailto:fire.safety@lincoln.fire-uk.org
mailto:planning@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:pollution@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:foodhs@sholland.gov.uk
http://www.hse.gov.uk/
mailto:tradingstandards@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Stacey.Waller@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:Publichealthlicensing@lincolnshire.gov.uk


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

  

To: Policy Development Panel – 4 November 2020 

 

(Author: Christine Morgan - Democratic Services Officer) 

 

Subject Policy Development Panel Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel  

 

 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion. 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1  Background 
 
1.1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 

inclusion on its Work Programme. 
 
1.2  Issues 
 
1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 

consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified. 

 
1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 

shows: 
 

 The name of the task group 

 What it wants to achieve 

 Key dates 

 Membership of the task group 

 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 

standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide 
the opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme. 

 
2.0  OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 
 
2.2 To do nothing. 

 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 13.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the  
 Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors  
 with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
 proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

 decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

 Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 

 Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 

 Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 

 Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 

 one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

5.1 Corporate Priorities 

5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the work programme, councillors consider the 

 suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 

 strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 

 indicators against which each potential task group is considered identifies how strongly the 

 topic links to the Council's key aims and priorities. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 

Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1  None. 

Background papers:- None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone Number 01775 764454 

Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No  

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar 2020/21 

Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2020/21 

Page 118



 
APPENDIX A 

 
Policy Development Panel – Calendar of Work Programme items 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda items 

4 November 
2020 

 Policy Register – standing agenda item.   

 AHM – Collections Development Policy 

 AHM – Collections Care and Conservation Policy 

 Revised Licensing Act Statement of Principles 

 Health and Safety Policy 
 

17 
November 
2020 (Joint 
PMP/PDP) 

 Homelessness – Horizon scanning presentation 

 Town Centre Improvement Plans - presentation 
 

7 January 
2021 (Joint 
PMP/PDP – 
Budget 
Scrutiny) 

.   

19 January 
2021 

 Policy Register – standing agenda item.  

 Planning Reform (if any information to report, update to be provided 
by the Planning and Building Control Manager) 

 Housing Allocations Policy 

2 March 
2021 

 Policy Register – standing agenda item.   

 Planning Design Task Group Final Report – updated following 
further work by the Task Group, as agreed at 23/6/20. 

 

 
 

 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date to report 
back to Panel 

Planning Design  To consider the draft Supplementary 
Planning Design document and how 
design issues raised (including those 
arising from the Performance Monitoring 
Panel’s Review of Implemented Planning 
Decisions tour) could be addressed within 
the document; and 
That the Task Group’s recommendations 
be incorporated into the draft 
Supplementary Planning Document, to be 
considered by the Policy Development 
Panel, with final agreement by the South 
East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning 
Committee 
Scope agreed at first Task Group 
meeting 28 January 2020 
 

25 June 2019 28 January 
2020 
 

J Astill (Chair) 
J L King 
P A Redgate 
J L Reynolds  
S C Walsh 

Final Report to PDP 23 
June 2020. 
Further work to be 
undertaken, with 
updated final report to a 
future meeting, early 
2021, once direction has 
been clarified with 
regard to the 
Government White 
Paper on Planning 
Reform 

Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Task Group 

Scope to be agreed at first meeting of the 
Task Group.   
Task Group to consider the facts on the 
CIL, and findings to be fed into 
Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) 
 
 
 
 

24 
September 
2019 
Reconsidered 
21/1/20 

To run at same 
time as Planning 
Design Task 
Group-findings 
to be fed into 
SPD. 
Update 
(15/9/20)-work 
to commence 
early 2021, once 
direction has 

Avery 
Drury 
McLean  
Woolf 

 

P
age 121



been clarified 
with regard to  
Government 
White Paper on 
Planning 
Reform 

 
PENDING TASK GROUPS 

 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date to report 
back to Panel 

Devolution Task Group Executive Manager Governance to set 
Terms of Reference once White Paper 
published 

23 June 2020 TBC TBC  

Data Protection/Data 
Retention Task Group 

To consider the implications of 
forthcoming changes to the Data 
Protection Policy as follows: 

 To develop the new policy in light of 
issues raised in the gap analysis and 
legislative changes and that a more 
detailed suggested scope would be 
circulated prior to the first Task Group 
meeting. 

 

3 October 
2017 

11 December 
2017 

H Drury 
M D McLean 
A R Woolf 
(Chairman) 
A Harrison  

To PDP 1 May 2018  
To Cabinet 29 May 2018 

 

P
age 122


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	7. Key Decision Plan
	8. Policy Register
	9. Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Development Policy
	Appendix 1 for Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Development Policy

	10. Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Care & Conservation Policy
	Appendix 1 for Ayscoughfee Hall Museum Collections Care & Conservation Policy

	11. Corporate Health & Safety Policy 2020
	Appendix 1 for Corporate Health & Safety Policy 2020

	12. Revised Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix A Draft Statement of Licensing Policy

	13. Policy Development Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


